VILLAGE OF PENTWATER

327 South Hancock St. P.0O. Box 622 Pentwater, MI 49449
(231) 869-8301 - FAX (231) 869-5120
www.pentwatervillage.org

AGENDA

VILLAGE COUNCIL - Regular Meeting
DECEMBER 11, 2017 at 6:00 PM

To be presented hefore the Village Council in the community room.
Call to Order.

Council Roll Call.

Public Comments (not on agenda).
Approval of the Agenda.

Public Comments (on agenda).

SO

Approval of Consent Agenda Items.

All matters listed under Item 6. Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Council and will
be enacted by one mation. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion of
an item is required, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Approval of village council regular meeting minutes from November 13,2017 and.
Regular Village bill approval of $379,097.15, Fire Department bill approval of
$3,807.89.

Requests for Village Property use:

None

7. Announcements:
1. 2016/2017 Audit Review

2. Report from Engineer
DEPARTMENT REPORTS

Village Manager - Chris Brown

Village Clerk/Treasurer - Rande Listerman
Police Chief - Laude Hartrum

Marina Manager ~ Dick Hutchings

Fire Chief - Terry Cluchey

Zoning Administrator - Keith Edwards

N

We are an equal opportunity employer. Page 1 of 2



COMMITTEE and BOARD REPORTS
. Buildings & Grounds Committee — Michelle Angell-Powell
. Finances Committee - Jared Griffis
. Ordinances Committee - Dan Nugent

1

2

3

4, Personnel Committee - Peter Dunlap

5. Promotions Committee ~ Pamela Burdick
6

. Services Committee - Don Palmer

VILLAGE COMMISSION and BOARD REPORTS
1. Planning Commission - Ron Christians
2. Zoning Board of Appeals - Mike Castor
3. DDA - Dr. Claudia Ressel-Hodan

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
1. 2017 Audit Review
2. Water Tower — Dixon Eng. Final Payment
NEW BUSINESS
American Tower Contract
Review of the General Ledger
Planning Commission Appointment - Bruce Koorndyk
2018 Open Meeting Act Resolution
MDOT Performance Resolution
Golf Cart Resolution

Re-Development Ready Communities Resolution

® N o o W N R

Title VI Approval
ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC COMMENTS
1. Will be made ONLY when the Village President opens the
meeting for public comments.
2. Itis asked that you state your name & address to Council.
3. All comments will be addressed to the Village President.
4, All comments are limited to 3 minutes.

Thank you for your cooperation
Council Agenda Page 2 of 2



Village of Pentwater

327 S Hancock St., PO Box 622 Pentwater, Michigan 49449
(231) 869-8301 Website: www.pentwatervillage.org

Regular Meeting of Village Council

MEETING MINUTES
November 13, 2017

Call to Order - President Jeff Hodges called the regular meeting of the Pentwater Village
Council to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Community Room at Village Hall.

Pledge of Allegiance - Before President Jeff Hodges opened the meeting with the Pledge of
Allegiance, he thanked all the Veterans in the community for their service.

Roll Call - Present: Pam Burdick, fared Griffis, Dan Nugent, Don Palmer, Michelle Angell-Powell
and Jeff Hodges. Absent: Peter Dunlap.

Also, present. Village Manager Chris Brown, Clerk/Treasurer Rande Listerman, Deputy
Clerk/Treasurer Kate Anderson, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Barbara Siok, Police Chief Laude
Hartrum, Fire Chief Terri Cluchey, and Village Attorney Brian Monton.

Public Comments {Not on the agenda).

Approval of the Agenda. President Hodges requested an approval of the Agenda. Motion by
Palmer, supported by Griffis to approve the agenda as presented.
Voice vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0 Absent 1 Dunlap. Agenda approved.

Consent Agenda. Approval of village council regular meeting minutes from October 9,2017
and the Special Meeting on October 27, 2017. Regular Village Bill approval of $197,643.87 and
Payroll of $85,879.80. Fire Department bill approval of $3,485.55.

Requests for Village Property use:
1. Wedding ceremony on the Village Green, Hannah Duvall marrying Patrick
LaFontaine on May 18, 2018 and to set up at 2:00 pm for a 4:00 pm wedding.
2. Awards Ceremony on the Village Green, PTW & PYC on June 30, 2018 at 11:30 pm.

Motion by Griffis, second by Burdick to approve the consent agenda items.
Roll call vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0. Absent: 1 Dunlap. Consent agenda items approved.

Announcements:
Street Improvement Plan: See report from Fleis & VandenBrink. Mike gave a summary of the
2017 Phase 1 Project and went over the Punch List which will be listed on the Village Website.

VILLAGE DEPARTMENT REPORTS
Reports are in the meeting packet and posted on www.pentwatervillage.org.
Village Manager - Report Submitted in writing.
Police Chief - Report Submitted in writing. Chief Hartrum reminded everyone about seasonal
parking. Awarded a Strategic Planning Grant.
Marina Manager - No Report, Submitted in writing. Marina is closed for the season.

Council Minutes Page 1 of 4



Fire Chief — Report submitted in writing. Also, the department welcomes new MFR/Firefighter
Scott Domin.
Zoning Administrator - Report submitted in writing

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Committee meeting minutes are provided if received in time for the packet.

Building and Grounds Committee - Report was submitted in writing. Angell-Powell stated
the committee discussed the Marina Bids and Village Hall as well as the Friendship Center. If
any citizen would like to be part of the ad hock committee regarding the discussion of the
future plans for the Village Hall and the Friendship Building. Please contact her directly.

Finance Committee - The committee met on October 12, 2017. The 2017/2018 Budget is on
track and no amendments are needed at this time.

Ordinance Committee - The Committee met on November 6t to discuss the Village Right-a-
Way. During Phase 1 of the Street construction it was discovered that some homeowners have
their sprinkler systems in the right-a-way. The committee discussed a free permit as a possible
solution for use of the Right-a-Way. Also, the committee is working on a Resolution regarding
the regulations of Golf Carts within the Village limits. They discussed the regulations and permit
fees. Attorney Monton will give his opinions to the committee on how to proceed. The
committee plans to have a Resolution on the agenda for the December Council meeting.

Personnel Committee - Dunlap expressed his regrets on not being able to attend tonight's
meeting. The committee was busy with interviews replacing two staff members in the Village
office. Rande Listerman - Clerk/Treasurer and Kate Anderson Deputy Clerk/Treasurer. Both
individuals were introduced earlier to the public by President Hodges.

Promotions Committee — No meeting, no report.

Services Committee - The committee met on November 9th. Please see minutes submitted
after the Council Meeting. Palmer thanked the following residents for their service on the
committee - Terry Valenzano, Norm Shotwell, Ted Cuchna, and Don Holly. The combined years
of expertise has been greatly appreciated by everyone. Primary item was the communication
that fell by the wayside to the residents. We are confident that this will be addressed as we
move into the other phases. The committee meetings are all public meetings. The next meeting
will be in December.

VILLAGE COMMISSION AND BOARD REPORTS

Planning Commission - See meeting minutes. Approved a non-conforming addition at 135
Channel Lane. Set a Public Hearing for December 20, 2017 to amended Section 18.02 of the
Zoning Ordinance.

ZBA - No meeting, no report.

DDA - Chairperson Dr. Claudia Ressel-Hodan addressed the Council. The last DDA Meeting was
held on October 11th. Treasurer's report - we are within budget. Christmas Swag Give Back
Program is going well. If you are a business owner that did not receive your Christmas Swag,

Council Minutes. Page 2 of 4



Fire Chief - Report submitted in writing. Also, the department welcomes new MFR/Firefighter
Scott Domin.
Zoning Administrator - Report submitted in writing

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Committee meeting minutes are provided if received in time for the packet.

Building and Grounds Committee - Report was submitted in writing. Angell-Powell stated
the committee discussed the Marina Bids and Village Hall as well as the Friendship Center. If
any citizen would like to be part of the ad hock committee regarding the discussion of the
future plans for the Village Hall and the Friendship Building. Please contact her directly.

Finance Committee - The committee met on October 12, 2017. The 2017/2018 Budget is on
track and no amendments are needed at this time.

Ordinance Committee - The Committee met on November 6t to discuss the Village Right-a-
Way. During Phase 1 of the Street construction it was discovered that some homeowners have
their sprinkler systems in the right-a-way. The committee discussed a free permit as a possible
solution for use of the Right-a-Way. Also, the committee is working on a Resolution regarding
the regulations of Golf Carts within the Village limits. They discussed the regulations and permit
fees. Attorney Monton will give his opinions to the committee on how to proceed. The
committee plans to have a Resolution on the agenda for the December Council meeting.

Personnel Committee - Dunlap expressed his regrets on not being able to attend tonight's
meeting. The committee was busy with interviews replacing two staff members in the Village
office. Rande Listerman - Clerk/Treasurer and Kate Anderson Deputy Clerk/Treasurer. Both
individuals were introduced earlier to the public by President Hodges.

Promotions Committee - No meeting, no report.

Services Committee - The committee met on November 9th, Please see minutes submitted
after the Council Meeting. Palmer thanked the following residents for their service on the
committee - Terry Valenzano, Norm Shotwell, Ted Cuchna, and Don Holly. The combined years
of expertise has been greatly appreciated by everyone. Primary item was the communication
that fell by the wayside to the residents. We are confident that this will be addressed as we
move into the other phases. The committee meetings are all public meetings. The next meeting
will be in December.

VILLAGE COMMISSION AND BOARD REPORTS

Planning Commission - See meeting minutes. Approved a non-conforming addition at 135
Channel Lane. Set a Public Hearing for December 20, 2017 to amended Section 18.02 of the
Zoning Ordinance.

ZBA - No meeting, no report.

DDA - Chairperson Dr. Claudia Ressel-Hodan addressed the Council. The last DDA Meeting was
held on October 11%, Treasurer's report - we are within budget. Christmas Swag Give Back
Program is going well. If you are a business owner that did not receive your Christmas Swag,

Council Minutes. Page 2 of 4



please contact the DDA they are in the basement of the Village Hall. Marketing Committee is
placing advertising in the local papers and on radio for “Weekends in Pentwater” during the
month of December. For every $100 a business owner contributed the DDA matched the funds.
The DDA had a total of $3200 to work with for advertisement. If this is successful, the plan is to
follow the same model in the spring. The beautification committee will be meeting on
November 20t regarding the Streetscape plans and the showcase block for next summer.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Zoning Attorney - Discussion was held on the letter of agreement from Mika Myers.
Motion by Griffis, second by Angell-Powell to approve the agreement with Mika Meyers for
assistance in Zoning in the amount of $10,000 annually in addition if the work exceeds the
approved amount Zoning Administrator Keith Edwards will come before the Village Council for
approval.

Roll call vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0. Absent: 1 Dunlap. Agreement approved.

NEW BUSINESS

Engineering bids for Marina upgrades, Electric & ADA.

Discussion was held on the Engineering bids for Marina upgrades.

Motion by Angell-Powell, second by Griffis to approve the Engineering bid from C2AE in the
amount of $18,000 for the Electrical and in the amount of $24,500 for ADA accessibility.
Roll call vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0. Absent: 1 Dunlap. Bid approved.

Appoint DDA Renewal - Motion by Palmer, second by Angell-Powell to approve the
appointment of Jack Witt to the Downtown Development Authority the term expires on
10/11/20.

Voice vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0 Absent: 1 Dunlap. Motion approved.

Fleis & Vanderbrink - Hallack Contracting Payment #1 - Motion by Palmer, second by
Griffis to approve the total payment in the amount of $173,973.67 to Hallack Contracting for
Phase #1 of the Street Improvement Plan. The breakdown to the following funds is as follows -
Water Fund $5,219.21, Sewer Fund $8,698.68, Road/Storm Fund $160,055.78.

Voice vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0 Absent: 1 Dunlap. Motion approved.

Audit - Council has requested that the 2016/2017 Audit Review be done in person by Ken
Berth from Berthiaume & Compamy in December. A recommendation was made by Don Palmer
to have an internal audit completed for the fiscal year beginning April 15t 2017 through
November 15t2017 for the purpose of reviewing the financial records for the new
administrative staff. Clerk/Treasurer Listerman will send out RFP's to some local firms and
report back to the Village Council at the December meeting.

Public Comments -

Ray Hasil - 541 Morris St. - With the regard to the benefit, the officers received a stipend - what
was that amount? April Watkins - 314 Rutledge - Chris mentioned that the Chief Hartrum is
Salary and works 40 hours or more. How many hours a week are we actively having someone
patrol? Mike Caster - 711 Morris - To the Sheriff what is your response time sir? When would

Council Minutes. Page 3 of 4



you be called? Sheriff Craig Mast - We are the only 24-hour day, 7 days a week department in
the county. We will respond. Bill Maxwell - 670 E Fifth St. - I don’t understand why all of a
sudden, we can’t afford our Police Department? Is the first step to getting rid of our Police
Department? Ray Hasil - 541 Morris St. How much notice did these officers have that they were
going to be furloughed? Joe Mack - | have lived in Pentwater 49 years and [ feel just as safe as
when we had a one-man Police Department. You are doing a great job. Amy LaBarge 605 E.
Sixth St. - I want to clarify you are talking about the schedule November 1st to May 15t? Jim
Nauta - 514 S. Carroll - How many incidents did you have from November 1, 2016 to May 1 of
20177 Ray Hasil - 541 Morris St. In, my work place we had to go through budget cuts. Is there
any reason why it did not go to full council vote? Is this decision unanimous? Ron Beeber - 605
6th St. - Are all the incidents in the Village or are some in the Township? Which does not pay
thing for this. Linda Fortich - 33 S Rutledge - You are saying one of the officers has left? Are you
looking to replace them? Bill Maxwell - 368 N Hancock - What is our average response time on
the incidents from November 1, 2016 - May 20177 Katie Arnouts 1001 E Park St. - ] am just
curious if it's a budget issue? Are other departments scaling back there hours? 1 think Randy is
an asset to us.

Adjournment - Hodges asked for a motion to adjourn. Motion by Palmer, second by Burdick.
Voice vote. AYES: 6 NAYS: 0 Absent: 1 - Dunlap.
President Hodges adjourned the meeting at 7:40 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Rande Listerman, MiCPT, CPFA, CPFIM Date
Clerk/Treasurer

Council Minutes. Page 4 of 4



6616 Py T9L’S 0070 96°8EZ'9 00°000‘21 sabey autl-3aed L UL S
Nm.nh 68°EBO'HT [ :35: | Z1°916°LD 00°000'26 Axetes/sabepy 000°Z0L-5T2-10
08°E6 00°TE 000 00°69F 00°'00S buturtess % uoiednpd 000°Z98-2LT-10
99765 89°10¢ po-o ZE" 862 007009 butbpo 7 Taspil 000°098-ZLT-TO
55°9 00°698°T 000 00°'TET 00°000°Z asuernsuy 000°'018-2LI-10
62°12 PS5 E6E 000 9y * 901 00°00S satTddng butjexadg 000°06L~ZLT-TO
60°5L LT'619°1 86°B6E €8°086‘Y 00°005'9 *dx3 on/eotd xekordug 000°91L-2L1-TO
SL'IS ES G0V ‘9T 93°6T0'E LETPES LT 00'000°vE s)1T3ausag asfoTdug 000" ZTL-2ZLT~T0
pebL v5 6TE‘Z2 29°pBE’S 9t ‘089 ‘59 00*000‘88 Aiefes/sabey 000" Z0L-2LT-T0
6L T2 BT ELT'T 000 28 9zZ¢ 00 005 ‘1 sosuadxd {aaesl 000°098-TLI-TO
LY ES 00" B6Y 00° 0 00°zZo8 00°005°% sdrysiaquay 3 sang 000°0ZB-TLI-TO
£E" €M 00" 052 00°0s2’1 00°0s2°’1 00°005°t EJUSWESHEEY 000°2TA-TLI-TD
£1°89 00°ZT6°T 000 00°880'% 00°000°9 aoueInSUI 000°0TB-TLT-TO
2E"99 9% BE9'ET 00°0 ¥5'198'92Z 00°005‘0F AlI3S TEN)oeIju0d/TRPUOTSESJ0Id 000°'00B-TLI-T0
o1t 00° 686 00°0 00°TT 00°000°T STOAUeTTIISTH 000 0FL-TLT-TO
29°LZ 18" EZL LE"ZE 6T°9LZ 00°000°'T *dx3 oW/estd Ia2doTdum 000" 9TL-TLI-TO
00'00T {00'00B8°T) 000 00°008°T 000 butyaan Jo4 000" POL-TLI-TO
9L 1E T9°625°'8 BO ETE GE'0LE'E 00°005°2T Butjeep/AxeTes sjusprseid oco.mop-ﬁpﬂuwa
§3anjTpuadx;
0198 EB°S92°'FOT Py TLE 0T LE"BEL'LTO’T D0°000‘2BT'T SAONIATY TYIO.
00°95 00 000 ‘¥ 00" 0 00°009 ‘S 007000 ‘0T pung juswdinbz-asg utwpy 199° ¥69-000-T0"
L0 8% o0-522'6 00°0 00°SLL'ZT 00°000‘'2Z Tamag dyysumol-99d UTWPY 265°F69-000-T0"
12" 8% 00°058°6T 00'0 00°069°L2 00" 005 'Lb I3JEM-393 UTWPY 166°¥69-000-10"
S6°LS 00°'0SL'TE 00°0 00°0SL'EY 00° 005 'SL Iamas obeTTTA~283 uTWpPY 066" ¥69-000-T0
£E°8S 00°'GLB°T 00°0 00°sz9°'e 00° 005t BUTIEK-283 UTWPY 086°p69-000-T0°
€E°BS 00°005°2 000 00°005‘E 00°000°9 1a3jua) dryspuatid-asd UTWPY 082 ¥69-000-10°
00°0L 00 00E 00°0 00°00L 00°000°'T Ppg-asd uTupy 8vZ ¥69-000-101
LZ LS 00°00L‘F 00°0 00°00E‘S 00°000°1T §3881]5 TED0T-333 UTWPY £02'¥69-000-10)
68°9% 00°szL’t 000 00°5L2°2 00 000t s313a13s ioleH-333 utupy 202 ¥69-000-T01
00°00T {6Z°L¥S) 05°¢c 62 LFS 00°0 aWOIUT IETH 000" ¥69-000-T0N
c0"00T {vec1L2) 000 L TLZ 000 53USUIEINUTIY 000°LL9-D00-TON
00°00T 00'0 00°0 00°000°E 00°000°E dyysumog-ubig uorieszday Juad 00E°TL9-000-TO1
9T 56°'05%°2 00" 0 G501V 00°005°'2 Butrsteapung wbig uotieaxdsy juad 002" 1£9-000-101
00°F2T {0C-0BF) 00" 22T 00°0B¥’Z 00°000°C €833 weibxq oay 00T " TL9-000-T07
00" TV 95°092'8 000 P 6EL’S 00°000°%T £36BRT/SIUsY 000°6993-000-101
00°00T (00" 0SP) 00" 0 00 oGt 000 aa3 butppey 9A 000° 899-000-101
59°'99E (SO EEE’S) 00° 052 GO"EEE’L go°'o00'2 siuay 000" £99-000-101
89°0 91°996°'% 000 b8 EE 00°'000°'S pauieg 359183uUl Jued 000 ¥99-000-101
00°'TTIZ (00°SS%) 00°STT 00°S50°T 00'00S §9UTd 3I8YDTL 3 SDJUBUTPIO 000°'S59-000-T0
05°'EIT  (00D°SET) 00°0 00°SET‘T 00°000°T situxag yedey 000°bS9-000-T0N
[4 2 1 00°98¢% 00°0 00°P16°6 00° 005’01 sa23 dwey yauneq 000" £59-000-T01
v0° 86 197611 E8"ZLZ 6E°088 00°000°'1 A3Teuag - uvotadaTTod abeqaen 000" TF9-000-T01
8L SL BE"18B'9Z (00" 1£} 29'811°v8 00°000°T1T1 a3 uoTloayroD abeqien 000" 0k9-000-T017
00°0 00'000°T 000 00°0 00°000°'1 uoylels Butueald ysta 000°8E9-000-T0)
00001 {00°0TT) 00°0 00°0TT 00°0 31531 394 3 s3Today 000" L29-000-T01
EL°0S SET90Z 00°0 $9°'ESZ 00°00% zog Buyutesy aostisnp 000°923-000-101
§6°S0T  {SE"99T) 000 SE991°E 00°000°E sa4 asuadyl aonbyi 000°529-000-T01
ZE'SE 00 E6E'TH 00°0 00°L09°22 00°000°'%9 anuaAay peleys a3e3g 000° kLG-000-TO1
06°82T {50°8LS) 96 vEQ'T S0°0L5°2 00°000‘2 saaj 3 siTuasd butuog 000°9Ly-000-T01
Sk oL €0°SST L 9606k ‘8 L6 PbB'0E 00°000°8Z AauoN 10v oa3s Iajreyd 000°Z2SY-000-T01
96'EIT  {£2°92e'T) L1 2L £EZ°92Z8'01 00°00S‘6 8a] UOTIBIISTUTWPY Xel Ajaadold 000" LbY-000-T01
po-o00T  {pI°¥22Z) Zh IhT P1 922 000 saxel UQ 3§3133UIl ¥ saTITeU3dd 000 S¥Y-000-101
2E"66 ¥9°050°G 00°0 9E°6b6 'PEL 00°000°0¥L anuasay xey Ajradoag 000 °*Z0Y-000~-T0%
sanuaaay
pund TeIauas - T[0T pung
agsn FONYTYE L102/0E/1T L10Z/0E/11 13oand aIAN3HY NOILdTHO53a HIGHAN IS
1oad % ATAVTIVAY HINORW FONVTVE dLX BI-LTOZ
H04 ALIAILOVW
» €8°99 "UmuUMMEmU dea] TeIsTd § . Tajemiuagd ‘€0
} L102/06/7 WIONZ QOI¥Ed Ayaey :1esn

FL/T :abeg

YIALYMINIG A0 IOVTIIA HOd 0339 TUNLIGNIIXE ANV FONIAEH

WY tv760 LT0Z/90/21



$¥8* 25T ) 0S5 LLE GE“BZS’T 000°T 2oueuajuieq 3 itedsy AHHUro.omm-quaﬁod
16°0% PS'E 00° 88T za°psv 'z 000 ‘9 SSTITTTIIN 000'026-Tb¥-TOT
BG L 96 EPT’'T {gg- LE) b0 9SE‘S 00° 005 'Y asuernsur 000" 0T8-1F¥-T0T
09°t¥ PT bLE'T 00°09 98°625°'T 00°005 '€ AI3S TENIOPIJUOD/TRUOTSEAFOIG 000°008-1F¥-10T
18795 ThULEL'T TE"TET B5°2LZZ 007000 "% asuadx3y wieITun 000 05L-TF¥-T0T
18°21T  {p1°952) b3°9Z v1°952°2 00°'000°2 sat1ddns burjeaadp 000°0pL-TkY-T0T
0000t 000 00°0 00°006°L 00°005°L g3d40 000°0ZL-Tbb-TOT
ve° iz 60°LIS'E pzrezz 16°286 00°005‘F +dx3 op/eoata ashordug 000°9TL-TPE-TOT
56729 S6°0L9°9 GL°0G6°T S0°6ZE'TT 00°'000°A1 s3jT3ausg @sfoTdug 000°ZTL-TPP-TOT
900t 9B TLY '1E 08°6Z1°C 1 BZS'ET 00°000°‘SH A1etes/cabey 000°Z0L-TPb-10T
00°0 00" 005 00°0 00°0 00° 00§ Bbutysrrqnd 000° 006~02F-10T
000 00" 000t 00" 0 00°0 00°000°T Bututeas 5 uvotaeonpl 000°298-02F-10T
0028 00" 0LZ 000 00°0£2°'T 00°006°T sdyysIiagquay 3 sang D00 028-0ZY-10T
(g £} 00°002°9 [/ (00" 002} 00°000°9 Alag [EPN3IDRIJUOD/TRUOTEE3JOIJ 000" 00B-0ZF-TOT
L9611 {FE°B86) 00°0 vE"B6S 00° 005 sayTddng Hurjeaadp 000°0%L-0Zb-T0T
£¥ LY S5 88L bz°-98 St ITL 00°005°T ~dx3 op/eoTs zadotduy 000°9TL-02P-T0T
00°00t {op-22) 00°0 oy 2e 000 £3772usg asfordugz 000 21L-02¥-TOT
ET'SS 00°66L°T 000 00°502°2 00" 000" Aed butiasH 134 000" v0L-02v-101
Eb-99 T1°00L'Y TAFRARE | 68°662'6 00°000°%T Axereg/sabey 000°20L-025-T0T
05°LS 00°006°TT 00°0 00° 001’91 00°000'8¢C Triuay jusudinbzy 000°0k6-10E-TOT
00" 00T (TE-95P) 00°0 TE"9GY 000 s0URUIIUTEN § ITeday 000°0£6-T0E-TOT
60 LS 60°BIZ’E €2 v0Z 16°182'F 00°005°L E3T3TTTIN 000 026-TOE-TOT
TT°S0T (95°52) LG*6TT 95°525 00°00% uoijowozxd 43Tunumo)d 000°088-TOE-T0T
00°0 00°000°Z oo o 00°0 000002 bututeal ¥ uorleonpPl 000°T9B-TOE-TOT
00°'00T (B8 EE) 000 88°E¢ 00°0 burbpoT ¥ Taaeal 000°098-T0£-T0T
00°0 00° 005 00°0 00°0 00" 00S sdrysiaquay % sang 000 0ZE8~T10E-TOT
9T ¥L A AT R {9E°F¥G) LS LGT’8 00°000°'TT @oueansul 000°0TB~-10£-101
GE°ZC 8Z°L60'E 09°698°% ZL 20V 'E 00° 0069 AJ35 TEN3DEIJUOD/TRUCTESSIOId 000" 0DB-TOE-TOT
00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 007 000°'T juswdyinbz Ajazes Teuosiag 000" 09L-T0E-TOT
F5 22T (E£T'6EE) 00°0 £I°8€8°T 00°005°T asuadxd WioITun 000°05L-T0E-T0T
a8 6h 9p'¥0S‘'T 5L 26 PG G6F ‘T 00°000°€E savTddng Huraeaado 000" 0FL-TOE-TOT
00 00T 000 000 00°005°L 00°'005°L 8440 000°0ZL-TOE-TOT
EE'T 9E"ELE'T 0070 992 00°000°Z *dxa eann 000°BTL-TOE-TOT
50 gL LI EE9'E YL ELE EB 99E'6 00°000°ET *dxz OW/edT3 1edorduz 000°9TL-TOE-TOT
6L*8S LL-ese’zt ar°pZ9 't E2LE9 LT 00°000°'0E §3T730uag 2adioTdwul 000°ZTL-TOE-TOT
60°ES 62 'ELD'PT 00°0 1L°926°ST 00000 ‘0L sabem swtl-3a®4 000 E0L-T0E~TOT
66° b9 09 EB¥’LS 9L°BZL'2T 0¥°9TS ‘30T 00°000‘b9T Kieteg/sabepy 000°20L-TOE-T0T
00 00T (Zv'oL) 00" 0 Zh oL 00°0 Tejuay juaudinby 000°0¥6-592-T0T
LE"2S EV'0T18°E BE° 08E LS 681k 00°000°s S3T3ITTTIN 000°026-592-101
00'00T {00°012) 00°0 007012 00°0 soueansuy 000'0T8-592-10T
91°£§ 9z°018'C LY 00’2 PL BETE 00°000'9 AI3§ TEN3OPIJU0)/TRUOTES3FOIG 060'008-592-101
Z1°F8 12°8E2 06°262 6L°T92°T 00°005°T satrddng buriezado 000°0FL-592-T0T
00°001 {Zp' 59} 816 Zv-go 00°0 *dxg oW/eotd xekoTdwy 000°'91L-592-T01
00°00%T {98°'¥&! 00°0 98°¥6 00°0 s3T3auag aafordugy 000°2TL-592-T01
LE"PLT (LB TILE) 00021 L8 1L8 007006 AzeTes/sabem 000°20L-592-TOT
65°¥9 12 1€5 Go°9 6L°096 00°005°T *dxg abejsod 000" v06-5TE-T0T
SG°BL =12l ¥4 08°19 Sk GBL 00°000°'T ButysTTang 000 0G06-512-T0T
EbTES 0b°TEL 0a°o 09°892°'T 00°000°'2 Bututeal 3 uotiEONpPI 000°'¢98-5iZ-101
BO"6C 9y 812’1 GZ2°L81 S 1oL 00°'000°'2 butbpoT ¥ T=ari] 000°098-512-10T
6E°0F 0Z° 68 00'0ET 08509 00'00S°T sdiysasquay 3 sang 000°028-512-10T
£E6°0 L T86'T (se° 19T} 59°81 00'000°'E soueInsul 000°01B-512-10T
421 ZZ2°660°Y 000 8L°006°Z 00°000°L £30BI3U0) SUTYIEH SITFJO 000°208-512-101
LP*9TT (BB°25T°'T) 00°S§ gg°'2si‘s 00°000°L AI35 TenideIjuo)/IPUOTESajolq 000 008-512-10T
£F°0€ 90" g5 ‘¥ 9191k b6 LLE'T 00°005 ‘9 satiddns butiexadp 000" 0FL-5T2-10T
62°69 15°95k°2 B9 LE9 6V EPS’S 00°000°8 *dx3 oW/eodta asdoiduz 000°9TL-GTZ-T0T
GB° G5 SP 92T HI z6°'022’c S ELBILT 007000 °2€ s3t13suad sadordug 000°2TL-S1E-101
saanjTpuadxy
pung felauan - T[0T Pung
aasn FONYTYE LTOZ/O0E/TT LTIDZ/OE/TT LIANd Q3aNIWY KOILAIMOS3A HIFGHON 19
LOAE % dTAVTIVAY HINOW JONYIYE L BT~LT02

vi/z :=2bea

404 ALIAILOV

Gg 99 :ipeisTdwo) Iesx [RISTI §
LTOZ/0E/TT ONIANT a0IddEd
HIIYMINGG 40 FOVTIIA ¥0d T904Ad FUALIANTIXT

ONY dNNIATH

I93eMiusd :ddg
Ayaey :xasq

WY TF:60 LTDZ/90/2T



00°'00T (09°'066G‘c6Z) {0Z'LES'09) 09° 066 'E62 000 SEMALIANTdXT 7 SINNITATY JO IS
9z°19 Eb°9SB°LGP ¥9°800°'TL LS EPT'PEL 00°'000°ZBT'T SAMNLIGHAIRT TY.IC
01°98 E8°6G9Z'69T Fh TLE ‘0T LTI'WEL'LTID’'T 00°000°2ZBT'T SAONIATY T¥IC
ipung TEI8UED - 10T pur
9219 £V 958°LSY P9 800 ‘TL LG EVT'PEL D0°000‘2AT'T SEMALIANAIXE TYLC
56°99 00°00E'9 0G0 0c* o0z ‘et 00005 ‘8T AeTano ye3ifded 000°0L6-95L-TC
1] I6°181°¢ 06" 0 6v*BPB FT 00°000°‘8T 1ejuay juawdynby 000" 0¥6-9GL-TC
¥E°6ET (VS 0BE’T) 000 S 088‘F 00°005°€E 2ouEuajuUTER ¥ 1fedad 000" 0E6-95L-TC
09°19 91°266°'% 00" 852 ve*LO0‘S 00°000°E1 §3731TTaN 000°026-96L-TC
0070 00°000°¢€ 00°0 0c0 00°000°E sdrystadquay 3 sand 000°028-95L-1C
BT 02T (LL°ZOE) {ez*soT) LL-208't 0G°00G°T aougINSUI 000°0T8-95L-1C
ZE'OL CE'EGL'E 00°L09'Z B9°90Z ‘€2 00°000°EE AZag TEN3OEIIU0D/TRUOTESIFOIL 000°008-95L-1C
Lv'¥8 TL LBE’T 00°0 6Z°209 'L 00° 0006 sayTddns Bugjeaado 000" 0PL-9GL-TC
29 LY T1°L5E'2 05°TZT 682kt 00°006'FV *dx3 on/eoTd xedoTdud 000°9TL-95L-T(
00" 68 BB°686 ZET61G z1'o10‘s 00*000'6 g373suag aafordud 000" gTL-95L~-TC
EB°EL #9502 ‘0t BT°GSE9’T 9E*b6L ‘B2 00°000'6€ Axeteg/saben 000°20L-9GL-TC
00°0 00° 00s 00°0 00°0 00°00% Te3uay jusudinby 000°0¥6-F5L-TC
00°00T (¥6°LE) 00°0 ¥6°'LE 00°0 uotjowoxd A3TURUANOD 000 088-¥5L-TC
2°'11T  (06'18E) 00° 0S¥ 06°TBL'2 00°00G°E A13S TEN3ORIJUOD/TRUOTESaJOI] 000 008-¥5L-TC
9E'EL 9F°*590°E 00°0 ¥S bEG 00" 000V safTddng Buriezado 000° 0% L-PSL-TC
00'00T (ET'SE} 99°1 ET*S2 00°0 *dx3 oW/e0T4 1sAordug 000°9TL-PSL-TC
£8°Le L8 09¢E c9°g ET"6ET 00°DOS s3f3auag eaforduy 000°ZTL-PSL~-TC
SP TT 16°969°'2 Lh 22 6bEVE 00" 000’E Axeyeg/sabey 000" ZOL-VSL-TC
00°p0T (00" 69E) 00" 0 00°69E 00°0 asuernsug 000°018-15L-1(
£9°LL b LbE 00°595 5255 °T 00°000°Z AZSS TEn3oRIIU0D/TEUOTEEaFO1d 000°008-16L-TC
16°68 9p"6LS 00°0 P 0Zh 't 00°000’¥ sa77ddns Butiezado 000°0FL-TSL-TC
oo 00° 005 00°0 00°0 00° 006 rdxg einW 000" BTL-TSL-TC
11017 9Z°LSZ Zk-6e vLoZ¥T 00° 005 *dx3g oW/eotd Iakordum 000 9{L-TSL-TC
B9'LS 6B 9zc’‘e Z9°bvBE IT°ELT'E 00°006°'S Kxereg/sabey 000°20L-TSL-TC
00°0 00°000°0T 00°0 000 00°000°0T 1eauay jusuwdynbg 000°0¥6~T2G-1C
9F"6S 65666 'Fp 69" 10¥ 16°000°99 00°000°1TT AI195 TER3OEIIUOD/TEUDTES3I01g 000" 008-TZ5-T(
£0° 21 aF"65L'T TZ ELT rA 11T 00°000°‘2 ‘du3 op/edtTd IadoTduwd 000" 9TL-TZS-T(
69°5€ ok TLS'Z 68 Ik6 PG LER'T 00°000‘F 53TJauag saforduy 000 ZTL-TZ5-T(
88'91 9" pZo ‘9T 6E-LOV’T 9E°GLE'E 00°000‘02 Axetes/sabey 000°20L-T25-T(
BG'0E a1°LB9 ‘ST 20752 P8 2IE’'TT 00°000°LE §BTITITIN 000" 026-05b-TC
T9°e6F (21°2ZLB'L) FO"LEV ‘6 Z1-zL8'6 00°000°E 1ejuay jusudinbl 000°0v6-ThE-TC
saanjTpuad:
pung TeI2UaD - 0T Ppur
Qasn HONYTVE LI0Z/0E/T1 L10Z/0E/1E 139009 aIANIWY NOILAT8IS53d HITHAN ©
ioad % FTAVIIVAY HINOH FONVIVE Al 81-L102
HOd ALIAIIOY
e 68°99 :pejerdwol Ie8L TEOSTd % Isjemiuagd :g
f..\ L10z/0¢€/ IaNd QoIdEd Ayaey 39S
I awiy tabea 04T FUYOLIANIAXE ANY INNIATH WY ‘60 LT0Z/90/%

HHLYMINGG 40 FOWTIIA HOI



__.._ ...." O ....\J
{ ]
LS i

00°00T 96°TSL'T fap-2ez0’z) (96" T5L°T) 00°0 STHNLIANEdXE 3 SIAONIATH IO Ldh
19°BF ZL TS ‘BE -} A1 A A : A1 R TS 00°Q00’SL STHALIANAIXE T¥L01
8z'9¥% go e6C'0v 00" 0 ZET90L'bE 00°000°GL SANNIARY TYLOJ
:pung 39a3x3gs zofey - zoz pung
19*8¥ ZL TIPS 'BE 9v*220°2 BZ 8BSk ‘9E 00'000°SL STUNLIONIAXE TYLOI
B8'95 00°SeL’T 00°0 oD-sLz’z 00° 000 ‘% asuadxy uTWPY 0" 92L-Z8k-202
00" 0 00°000 ‘0T 00°0 00" 0 00° 00001 Teijusy juawdrtnby 000 0bP6-8LP-202
00°00T (00" bFT) 00°0 00°PPT 00°0 aaueinsul 000°'0T8-8LP-202
000 00" 000K 000 0G°0 00 000’k AZBS Ten1oeajuo)/TeusIssajold 000°008-BLF-202
0E°¥9 26°0L0°T oD'0 80 6Z6°T 00°000°'E seTTddng butjeaado 000" 0¥L-BLE-Z0Z
60'0 00°000°2 00'0 00°0 006°000°'2 s37Jyauag eadoydum 000" 2TL-BLY-202
00°0 007000 °0T 00" 0 000 00°000'0T Azetes/soben 000" 20L-8L¥-202
00°00T (00°96) 0070 00°96 00°0 aoueInsuy 000°018-FLY-202
0070 00°000°T 00°0 oe°o 00°000°'T sar1ddns burjeaedo 000°0VL-FLY-202
00" 00T (6¥°96F%) VE'62 67" 96F 00°0 *dxg on/eo13 Ishotduzg 000°91L-bLY-202
00°00T (0T"ZEB’E) SL E0Z 0T 2e8’€ 00°0 s3t3suag aakordug 000" ZIL-FLF-Z0T
9L79TL (B8S°L9T1'9) 8% 9Tk BGTL9T L 00°000°1 A1eteg/sabey 000" Z0L-bLV-202
08°T9T {00°9€EZ'T) 00°0 00°3£2°E 00°000'2Z juswsderday YTeMapPIS 000 2LE6-E9V-20Z
16°62T {(vs'SLb 1) 00°0 S GLE'9 00°000°S Tejuay Juswdrnba 000 0V6-£9F-202
£9°81 SL'ETA 00°0 5Z°9B8T 00°'000°T adueuajutel 7 1teday 000" 0EG6-E9F-20T
1299 00°59c’'2 00°sLZ't 00°5E9 'y 00°000°L we1b01d BIJUPUBIUTER B3Il 000°€18-E9P-202
00°00T (E8°TEF) (LT TFT) ER TER 00°0 IoUPINSUT 000" 0TB-E90P-202
600 00°000°T 00°0 000 00°000°% AI35 TPN3IPIJUO)/[PUOTES3I0Id 000" 00B-£9F-202
¥E-62T  {9£°282) 00" 0 9E"EGZ'T 00°000°T sattddns butiexadp 000°OFL-E9V-202
rFe-E 85°196 Z0°0DT Z¥°BE 00°000°T rdxd OW/edTd 1afoTdum 000°91L-E9%-202
9k 1T 88°0LL'T 0" S8 Z1°622 00°000'2 §373a2uag 3do1dwz 000" 2TL-E9V-20C
L9°0T 6k 99% ‘P 66°EPT TS €ES c0"000‘s AzeTes/sabey 000" Z0L-E9V-Z0E
EE'ET 00 00s ‘1T 000 00°005’E 00°000°ST Ae1ing fe3tded 000" 0L6-15b=-20T
. sainyrpuadxy
82°9% 89 E6Z 0V 00°0 ZE'90L'bE 00°000‘SL SANNAATA TYLOL
00°00T (92°89) 00°0 9Z°89 00" 0 pauzed 35aI23Ul Yueg 000° F99-000~-202
81°9F ¥6 19t ‘00 00°0 90°8£9°FE 00°000°‘SL X2l JubTem ¥ seD - I5 10VW 000" 155-000-202
sanuaasy
pung 392135 1oleq - zoz pung
qasn FINVTYE LT0Z/0E/TT LTIDZ/OE/TT II20Ng QIGNINY NOILATIHOSHA HIGHAN 19

19ad % ITHYTIVAY HINOH IONY'IYE dLA 81-L102

FI/F 1abw

¥03d ALIAILOVW

G899 :pdlardwo) IwS TEIETI §
LT0C/0E/TT ONIGNZ AoI¥dd
HALYMINGD 40 FIVTTIA H0d L90dTd FUNLIGNAAXS

ONY JONIATH

asjemiuad :dg
Ayzey :assn
WY T#:60 LT0Z2/90/21



00°00T (06'GES‘9T) (10" 808} 06°SES ‘92 00°0 STUALIONIAXE 3 SIANNIATH J0 1
Tt Ly 00°82B‘TS 10° 808 00°2LT 9% 00°000°'86 SEHALIANIAXT TYL
6T PL 01°'26Z°G2 00°0 06°L0L‘2L 00°000'86 SANNIAATY "IVL
’ ipund 353135 {eJ0T - £0Z PU
TT Lk 00°828°15 10°808 00°2L1'9¥ 00°000'06 STUNLIANTAXE TYL
Lz Ls 00'00L'Y 0o o0 00°00£°9 00" 000°1T asuedxd uTwpy 000°92L-28F-C
00'0 00°000'0T 00°0 00°0 00700001 Tejuay juewdinby 000 0v6-0LF-E
00°00T (00 PET) 00°0 00°¥EZ 00°0 agurInsUT 000°0T8-BLE-E
SE'C9T  {05°096°T) 00°0 05°096°'% 00" 000°‘E soyrddng butjeaado 000°0¥L-BLY-E
LT0 VE'B66 99°1 99" T 00000 ‘tT -dx3 oW/eotd zaiotduz 000" 9TL-BLV-E
Lo GE'TI66 G9°8 59°8 00°000°T £3132uag eaforduy 000" ETL-BLV-E
220 ES'LLG'S Ly ee Lh 2z 00°000°01 Azetes/sabey 000°20L-BLV-E
00°0 00" 00S 00'0 00°0 00°00S Tejuay juswdtnbg 000°066~bLV-E
00°00T (DO°kPT) 00" 0 00" bbT 00°0 sourInsul 000°0TB-VLb-E
00°0 00 00S 00°0 000 00° 005 satTddns Huytjezadp 000'0bL-VFLF~E
00°00T (£9°¥09O) pL 9T £€9°¢09 00°0 +dx3a oW/eovd aakorduz 000°9TL~bLV-E
00°00T (T9°E£0L'P) £2°GET 9 EOL'¥ 00°0 £373ousd aalorduz 000°ZTL-bLV-E
16°186 (ZL-Zze'L) Ly 6E2 Zr'zeL’s 00°006'T Aieteg/sabey 000" 20L-bLb-E
TL"SS LE°BZE'T 00°0 £9°1L8°T 00" 000°E Juswaoetday ATeMapIs 000" 2L6-E9F-E
29 bS TT°Tr6 'L 00°0 68°0855'6 00" 00G°LT Tejuay Juaudinby 000" Ob6-E£9F-E
00°00T (rZ-98T) 000 P2 981 000 soueuajutey 7 itedey 000°'0E£6-E£9b-E€
SL°52 00°5S¥‘F 00°S9 00°5%5°T 00°000'9 weiboig IJUBPUIIUTEW 983L 000 €1B-£9V-E
0000t (BT"Z2T0'T) (28 6E) 81°210°T 00°0 asueINsUI 000°018-E9b-E
00°'99 00°0bE 00°0 00°099 00°000°'T AI35 TeEnjdeIjuc)/TeuUnisEsajold 000" 008-£9V-E
EL'6C pP GOF’T 00°0 9G° P65 00°'000°’2 satTddns buriezado 000 0P L-E9V-E
62°T b¥° 19672 £€0°s1 95° 8¢ 00°000°E *dxa oW/eoTd 1aforduz 000°9TL-E3F-€
68°21 ST 2hL’T 65°LZT 68°L52 00°000°2 s377ouag aafordu 000°2TL-E9¥-€
£0'E ST 68F ‘LT 66°612 5: 31 00°000°8T Axetes/sabem 000°20L-E9F-E
98° 29 00°00%°Z 00°0 00°00F‘Y 00°000°L fetang Tearded 000" 0L6-TGF-E€
saxnjtpuad
6T WL 0T"Z6Z'GE 00°0 06°LOL'ZL 00°000'86 SIANSATY TVL
00007  (LO"6F) 00°0 LO 6 000 pauieg 3531ajul yueg 000°¥99-000~E
Z8° S B88°880°LE 00°0 ZT 11622 00° 000’05 xel jybiey % se9 - G 3oV 000" T155-000-€
00°00T (¥5°0) 00°0 S0 00°0 §9XEL UQ 3I531ajuUI 3 EITITEUI4 000° G b-000-€
POE0T LT LEL'TI 00°0 LI LYL'6F 00° 000’8k anuaaay xel fAjxadoid 000" Z20v-000-£
Sanuan
punj 339135 TE207 - EQZ PU
agsn FINYTYd LTOT/0E/TT LI0Z/0E/TT EA900d QIGHINY NOILdIdD53a HAGHAN
1908 % ATEYTIVAY HINOW HONYTVE aLA 8T-LT0Z

FI75 :abeg

404 ALIAILOY

Gg'99 :po3aTdwon IEaX TEDST &

ﬂqhﬁnzm qoTvad

HAIIYMINIG 30 TOVITIA HOd 0dTH FTIOLIANIXE ONY ANNIATH

Iojemjuad if
Auyaey :xe¢

WY *60 LTO0T/90/%



O

g8 eL (51-89k 22} {00059} 517897 ‘6 (00°000°ET) SIUNLIANIAX3 ¥ SINNIATY J0 I3l

66" TIE 0L POB'EZ 00" 059 OE*G6T°TT 007000 ‘SE SAYNLIANIAXT ‘I¥L0:

26 "E6 GG 9EE’T 00°0 5k E99 ‘0T 0000022 SANNIATH TYIO.

tA3Troyyny juswdoTansq uUMolIuUMOd - 8FZ pun:

66°TE 0L"¥08°EE2 00° 059 0DE"S6T TT 00°000°SE SAYNLIANZANS TYIO.

G0°ZIT {0L°08T) 00" 0 0L°089°T 00°005°T SBTITTTIN 000’ 0Z6-D00-B¥:

Z1°Le 0" 589 °cZ 00°059 09°viB‘8 00°00G'2E uoyjowold AjTunuwod 000 ' 088-000-8%:

00" 0L 00°00E 0c°0 00'00L 00°000°'T asuadxd uTwWpY 000°9ZL-000-8¥%(

saanjtpuadx:

Z6°€6 GG 9EE’'T 00°0 S £09 /02 00°000°‘22 SANNIATY I¥LO)

00°00T {09°TT} 00°0 08°11 [t ) pauzeg 3s2Ia8jul jueg 000" F29-000-8F1

oo 00T {8%°T) 00°0 8%°T 00°0 ESXNPL UD 182I3]Ul 3 SITITRUAG 000" Skb~000-BF:i

LB €6 E9°6HE'T 00°0 LE*0S9 02 00°000°22 snuasey xel A3jzadoxg 000°20¥-000-8kt

sanuUana}

A3Tioyany juswdoraasg umojuMmod - 8FZ Pung

a3asn AINYIVE LTOZ/0E/TT LT02Z/DE/TT L39and QIANIHY HOILAI¥OS3A HIGHAN 1t
19ad % ITIVTIYAY HINOH JONYIVE QLX 81-L102

HOd ALIAILOV

G§°99 :palaTdwo) 1eax TEOIETI § Iajemiusd :dC

LTOZ/0E/TT ONIANT QOI¥ad Ayaey :1asr

PI/9 :abeg HALYMINGG JO FOVTTIIA HOd LHOAEH FHEALIANIAdXE ANY FNNIAIY WY T¥:60 LT02/90/21



LE"ZL (29 00%°'Ly) (5e°620°1) 29°006°61 {00-00G°LZ) STUNLIONIAXE ¥ SEAONIATY J0 J
L9t 25 E95 ‘9% 96°095°1 8y 9ER ‘¥ T 00°000°19 STUNLIANAART TV
05°zot  (01°LEA) 19°5€ES 01" LEE’VE 00°00G ‘€€ SANHIAEY TWI
:1293ua) dryspuatid Iajemjuad - (8Z pU
L9°€£2 Z5 E95‘9Y 96°095°T gk *9EF ‘BT 00°000°'TH STUNLIANIXT TYl
00°0 00°000'0E 00'0 00" 0 00°000'0€ Ketang Te3vded 000°0L6-000-0
LE'z ST B8k 00°0 S8 TT 00° 005 Teajuay juaudrnbg 000" 0%6-000-0
000 00°000'2 000 000 00°000°2 soueusjuTe 3 arvedasy 000 0E6-D00-0
29°0§ 29°60Z°E Z0°ps2 BE"06Z'E 00°005°9 SaTITTTIN 000" 0Z6-000-0
0L ES 00" E9% 000 00" LES 00°000°T soueInsul 000°'0TB-000-0
S0°0% Ve VGE‘Y P6°90E'T 915099 00°000°1T Alag Tenjoeiiuo)/{euUCTsSEazold 000°008-000-0
Li-ze 0P L9T’T 00°0 09°2EE 00°005°'T satrddns butjezadp 000°0FL-000-0
£E°8G 00° 0052 00°0 00° 005 ‘€ 00°000°'9 esuadxg utwpy 000°'92L~000-0
00°00T (€E"L) 00°0 £E°L 00°0 *dxg oW/eoT3d 1afofdug 000°'91L-000-0
896 85 1S¥ 00°0 2y 8r 00°00¢S s3tyeuag safoidud 000" ZTL-000-0
6T1°5 52°968°'T 00°0 L E0T p0°000'2 Kxeqeg/sabey 000°Z0L-000-0
seanjtpuad
05°2Z0T (01" cLgA) 19°SES 0T LEE'VE 00° 006 'EE SANNIATY TVl
8y°z0T (89" 6k} 19°SES 89°'6%0°Z 00°000°2 s3uay 000° L99-000~0
00°00T  {ZL°0T) 00°0 ZL oeg 00°0 pauzed 363Ia3ul Yueq 000" ¥99-000-0
00°00T {SE"0) 000 cE'0 00°0 gaxe] UQ 35a2Iajul ¥ sarTITeUad 000°S¥p-000-0
EV 20T (5E°99L) 0070 SE"99Z'2E 00°00S°TE anuansd xel A3zadoaq 000°20¥-000-0
sanuan
ae3jua) dyyspuatad Iajemauad - (08¢ pu
a3Isn FDONYIvd LTOZ/0E/TT LT0Z/0E/TT 139004 g3aNINY NOILAI¥ISAd UABHON
I9GH % ATAVIIVAY HINCH FONYIVE QLA 8T-L102

PI7L :9beg

HOd ALIAILOY

58-99 :pajaTduo) rEaj TEIST §
LT02/0E/T WIanz dor¥da
049y FHALIANIAXT ANY FOANIATL

YIIYMINIG J0 IOWITIA H0d

TojeMmijuad :
fyjey :ie

WY Y7760 LT02/90/



\ll. | f 3 i |
L | T A
00°00T (DB LZV‘LEZZ) 000 0B LEP'LZE 00°0 SAUNLIANZdXE 3 SANNIAFE J0 Lar
26 11 PE"BIL EGT 00°0 99°1E2'92 00'000 ‘022 STENLIANIdXE TY.LOJ
0E°6TIT (9F°659 'EE) 00°0 9b 659 ‘EGEZ 00°000°022 SHANIATY TYIC)
rpung =DTAISE Ig9d - 10E Pun
Z6° 1T PE BOL'EGT 000 99 1£2'92 00" 000°022 SAUALIGNIAXE TYLO)
L'k YE'B9EL'VE 000 99°1£9'62Z 00'000 ‘09 pted 3saiajul 000 566-000~-T0¢
00°0 00000091 [$L1 ] 00°0 00° 000091 Tedroutrig - soTaxes 1qed 000" 066-000-10¢
00°00T (00°GO9} 000 00009 000 SNOAUBTTIDETH 000°096-000-10¢
saanitpuadxs
0E"SIT {9%°659°EE) 00*0 9F" 659 ‘£5Z 00°000°022 SANNIATY TYLO)
00°00T {00°9971°'BE) 00" 0 00°991'8€ 00°0 ul Iajsuei] 000" 669-000-10¢
00" 00T {GE°Z) 00" 0 54 00°0 SaxXe] UQ 159IX23UI 3 SsaflTPUagd ao0 " Skk-000-TOE
S6° L6 687805’} 00*0 IT I6F'SIT 007000022 snusasy xel Ajaadoig 000" 20b-000-T0€
sanuaAst
puni 90FAIaS 14ad - T0E Pun:
aasn ADNYIVE LTDZ/OE/TT L10z/08/11 135008 AIANIWY NOILdI¥IS3d HITHAN "I
1aag % ATATIIVAY HINOW JONYIVE AdLi BI-LT0EZ
HO0d ALIAIEOW
g 99 :pajarduo) IvSx TEOSTd % 1ejemMjuag :HC

¥T/8 :2beg

LTOZ/0E/TT ONIGNT QOIWdd
YALYMINGG 40 FDYTIIA HOd JHO4d3d FUALIANIdXE GNY dANNIATH

Ayaley :aasf
WY TFi60 LT02/90/21



00°00T (ZP°EBG°099‘T) {zGg*eoz’22z2) Zh €86 ‘099 °1 000 sAUNLIANIAXT ¥ SAONIATY J0 &
00°00T  (BL'Z9Z'STW) 25 enz’zze BL*Z9Z STV 000 SIUNLIONIIXT TYL
00°00T (02°9%EZ’9L0°2) 00°0 0zZ'9v2’'9LD’'e o000 SENNIATE TYL
fpUNg UOTIONIISUOD JIIIFS - 96 PU
00'00T (8L°29Z'STh} 26 €02'222 8L" 292 STV 000 SAUNLEANIAXI YL
00°'00T (00°991'BE) 0G°0 00°991°'BE 00°0 L0 SYIASNWHL D00 666-000-2
00°001T (LB BBE'¥F) 00°0 LATBBE’‘WY 00°0 sasuadxg snoaueTTaI5TH 000°096-000-53
oo*oot  {(00'BT) 00°0 00°081 00" 0 1qeg 09-s3a4 Aued 000" 828-000-5
00°00T (T6°689‘ZEE) Z5°E0z’2eT 167689 ‘ZEE 000 AXag (enjoexjuo)/ieUOTssajold 000 ' 008-000-2
saanjTpuad
oo oot {0Z"9FZ‘9L0’C) 00°0Q 0z°9pZ‘9L0‘2 000 SANNIATY YL
00°'00T (06°€60°T90°2) 00°0 06"EGD'TY0'Z 00°'0 spaa20ld 2TeS dNOd 000 969-000-9
00°00T (b6 L2V ’S) 00°0 e LZE’S 00'0 pung I3jeM woij - NI SURLL 165°699-000-9
00°'00T (50" pOT’'9} 000 sp roZ’s 00°0 punj IaMag woly - NI suell] 06G°699-000-9
00°00T (E£°025°E) 00°0 1£°026°¢E 00°'0 pesuaed 31sazajul Yued 000" #99-000-3
sanuaa
pung UOTJIONIISUOD ISBIIS - 06k PU
aIsn FONVTYE LTOZ/0E/TL LTOZ/0E/1T 139d0d gIGNIHY NOIJdIHDS3a HALRON
19ad % ATEVTIVAY HLNOH FONVIVE LA BT-LTI0E

vi&m rabea

¥W0d ALIAILIW

cg 99 :pejaTduo) 1eax TEOSTd §
LTOZ/0E/T
HALYMINId J0 FAOWTIIA HOd

ﬁHDzm a0I¥Ed

I THNLIANIdXE ONY FONIATH

Iajemjuag :
Ayzey 19

W “60 LT0Z/90/



)

00001 {£1°ogL’'Zh) {£5°086 2} £I°02L°2T Q0" 0 STUNLIONZAXE ¥ SINNIATY JO LIk
Z29°98 s 2ii‘et £€G°0EL‘S St LBE‘BL 00" 00506 STHNLIANIIXT TYIOI
L9°00T (85°LD9) 00°0G6L°'2 8G°L0T ‘16 00700506 SANNIATY TYLIOI
IBUTIBH - (B85 PuUnj
Z9°98 56 EIT’'TT E5°0EL'S ShLEE‘EL 00° 005’06 STUALIANIAXT TYIOI
9T°1 0F 9tk ‘S 0070 09°€9 00°'006'S Aeqanp teztden 000° 0L6-000-0BS
00°00T (E9°PBT) 00°0 £9°PBT 000 snosueTTadsTH 000° 096-~000-08S
bL'6E 02°s02'1 000 08°b6L 000002 Tesuay Jusudinbz 000°0¥6-000-08S
¢E'LBE  (1672ZBT'L) 99°189°T 16°289°'6 00°005°‘2 @ouruajutey 3 xteday 000" DEG-DOO-08S
66°69 T1°100°E €8 T0E 68°0866'9 00°000°0T SaTITITIN 000" 0Z6-000-085
09°t S0 k94 0g°0 S6°GgE 00°000'T s98d pIR) jUuPg 000 62B8-000-085
L9°61 00°S0Z°T 00°0 00°562 00°005°T sdrysiaqual 3 sang 000°0Z8-000-085
00" 00T {00° 02’1} 00°0S2°'1 00°052°1 00°0 SIUSUSEISSY 000°218-000-08S
01°8% 66°LEA {66°081) 10°291°1 00°000°2 sourInNsul 000'018-000-08S
€9°69T (59°T18L'E) 8Z°LkB G9°TBL'L 00°000°S A3 TPNIDEIIU0D/TPUOTESAJO0Id 000" 008-000-085
00°921t (00° 092} 00° 0 00°09Z°7T 00°000°T Atddng 201 eutaey 000" 6¥L-000-085
€6°6TT (TL'L69}) 60" 0 TLLET'Y 00006 ‘E satiddng Butjezasdo 000 0bL-000-08S
€E"BS 00°SLB’T co0°0 00°529°2 00" 005 ‘¥ asuadxy utwpy 000°9ZL-000-08S
BT %I 00°02L'F 00°0 00°'08L 00°005°S *dxg eany 000" BTL-000-085
08°¥9 6T°¥BS‘T 01" 0ET 18°'6T6'C 00°00% ‘¥ *dx3 oW/eoTs asdordws 000°9TL-000-08S
00°00T {16°012) 0G°0 167012 00°'0 s3138usg 23ioTduz 000" ZTL-000-08S
EB°06 A £ S GO O0L'T 8BS BKT’BE 00°000'ZF Azetes/seben 000 20L-000-08S
sean]Tpuadxy
L9°00T (BS°L09) 00°0SL'2 BS°LO0T 16 00006 ‘06 SANNIATY TYI0L
00-00T (00" 599) 00°0 00°599 00°0 aWodul *O8TH 000° F69-000-085
00°00T (98°E) 00°0 9B g 00°0 pauzey 3sarajul jued 000° F99-000-08S
00°0£T (00" 0GT) 00°0 00°059 00°00S giTWIag yeley 000° F59-000-085
LZ" G5 2959’57 DY) 8L EVE'BT 00°000°SE *SUBIL-5084 BUTIEW 000" 259-000-085
£E6°921 (P6 TIPS ‘BT 00 05L‘2 F6 1¥S ‘89 00" 000 °‘FS ETEUOSERS5-53a] BUTIRH 000" T159-000-08S
0E VLT (QD°ERL) 000 00" EPL'T 00°000°T sates asl 000°059-000-085
0000t (00°09T) 00°0 00°091 00°0 §20TAI85 EUTIEH 000" 6E£9-000-085
Sanuasay
euUTICH - 085 pung
aasn FONYTIVE LT0Z/0E/TT LI0Z/0E/TT 149408 JaIaNINY NOILJIUDSAU HIEWNN 19
1908 % ATAVTIVAY HINOW FONVTIVE dlX A1-L102
¥0d ALIAILOY
G8°99 :pejeTdwo) Ieax TEDIST % IejemMluag :dud

vI/0T iebeg

LT0Z/0€/TT ONIOGNI QOIYdd
YALYMINGG 40 TOYTIIA HOd IHOdIY FHNLIANIIXE ANV FANNIAIH

Ayaey :aasq

WY Tyi60 LT02/90/C1



6E'LE (8L p¥O’ELT) (20" L0V 'LT) L b¥s’as {00°005'pP12) SEMALIGNIIXA ¥ SINNIATY J0 &
68° Tk 60°L60°00F ¥9°'010°8Z 16°20r ‘082 00°006G*889 STUALIANAIXT TYL
0Z'EL TE"ZS0'LET 29°T19 69°LY6 ‘OVE 00°000'VLE SANNIAIY TYL
Ipung Iomas Umm._...ﬁ._nb - 065 pUu
68" 1F 60" L6000V ¥9°810'8¢2 16°20¥ ‘882 00° 006 ‘889 SFUNLIANIAXd 1YL
T2 9k GZ2'919°'ZL 000 GLEBE'Z9 00°000’SET pred 388I93UI 000°'S66-E£05-0
00°'0 00°000°2L 00°0 00°0 00°000'2L TedToUTIg - 9ITATSS 193d 000°066-£05~0
00'00T (PL EST'ST) 000 PL EST’ST 00°0 Letano Tearded 000 0L6~E0S-0
00°0 00°000 ‘002 00°'0 0070 00° 000’002 asuadx3y uotieroaidag 000°896-E05-0
00°'0% '00°00% 00°0 00°00S 00°000°'T *dxg abejsod 000°v06-E0S-0
o000t {vv'86) 0070 ¥b'B6 00°0 bututea] 3 worjeonpl 000°298-£05-0
65708 GL°690°T {5L789) SZ'OEV'Y 00°005 'S saueInsuy 000°0T6-E0G-0
000 00°000°2 00'0 00'0 00°000'2 §a33 jTurag 000" 808-E0G-0
60°TST {S8°'T20'T) 58'121°'¢ S8 TZ0'E 00°000°'2 AI35 TENIIeIJUO0D/TRUOTSSaFold 000°00B8-E0S-0
kot LY 'BE2'2 60°0 £EG 092 00°'005°2 set71ddns Butjexadp 000 0FL-E05-0
S6°LS 00°05L'TE 00°'0 00" 0SL'ED 00°00G°GL asuadxg uTwpy 000°9ZL-E0S-0
00°001 00" 0 00‘0 00°005°L 00°00G5°L g3d0 000 0ZL-E05-0
0g-zZvz (v0'92%°T) 00°0 ¥0'92K ‘e 00°000°'T Te3usy juaudynbl 000°0k6-205-0
FE L 0Z " 0GB 60°'0 08°109°2 00°00G‘E esueuajurer 3 1teday 000" DE6-205-0
EE° 1S 66°226 1T 59°¥20°E T0°LLO'9E 00 000°BY¥ £2T37TTaN 000'026-206-0
ST°TST {p2 FO6°LT] B9 °'¥8L’9 vZ v06°2% 00°000°’SE A28 TENIDORIJUOD/TPUCTESIOId 000°'008-205-0
TE°69 8B° 06821 0Z°GER’ZT Z1°601°62 00°000°2% sayrddng Gurjeaedo 000'0bL-Z05-0
8965 2T E0b 16°'2L AL 966 00°000°1 *dxg oR/eaTd zafotdud 000°91L-205-0
0F°621T (06°18A8) L9° 218 06°188°E 00°000°'E s3Tyausd safordum 000°ZTL-205-0
GL"Z6 65 269 FA'BTO'T Sh LKE’'B 00000’ AieTeg/sabey 000°20L-205-0
62" TS €6°8¥6°T 0G0 Lo*150°‘2 00'000°Y Te3uay uawdinbg 000°0¥6-T0S-0
PP OLT  (LE‘POL) 0G0 LETPOL'T 00°000°T soueusjuTel ¥ ayeday 000°DEG-T0G=-0
BE'E9 98°T65'9 BT L90°T T 80y °‘TT 00°000°8T E3TITTTIN 000°026-105-0
PE'T g8v-9ck’s 000 26 EL 00°005°S AZag TEN}oRIUOD/TPUOTESDJOI] 000°008-105~0
oo‘oot  {tL°ziel 000 1L 21 00°0 satTddns But3ezado 000°0VL-T105-0
TE*8F 26916 £1'0€E B0 EBY 00°000°'1 -dxg op/es1d asAotdul 000 9TL-TO5-0
28-9L 81" 118 ZE'EBT z8°889°‘¢ 00°00S5'E g3TJeuay 2afordwg 000" ZIL-T0S-0
8E° L9 0L°T92°E 56°¥2b DE"BEL’9 00°000°01 KxeTeg/sabey 000 20L-T0S-0
s3aIn3Tpuad
02 £L 1£°250°L2T1 Z9°119 69°L¥6'9PE 00°000°VLY SAANIATY THI
00°0 00° 000’9 00°D 00°0 00°000°'9 zamag dyysumol SIDFSURPI]L 265°669-000-0
0s°t8 00° 066 0o0°0 00°010°S 00° 000’9 1§2123UI 18430 000°599-000-0
00°00T (TZ2°91T) 000 T2 9Tt D0'0 pauzed 3§2I3ajul ued 000" ¥99-000-0
TO 6L 99°509 pS EEL PE WEE‘Z 00°000°€ saT)TRUSd 000°959-000-0
00°0 60 000'F 00'0 00'0 00°000°F §884 UOTIISUUOD 000°9%9-000-0
09°bL 98°ZLS'STT (z6°127) pI‘LZh 'GEE 00°000°SSE saTeg Iamas abeTITA 000°Z¥9-000-0
sanuas

pung 1amas IbeTTTA - 06 PU

agsn FONYIVE LT0Z/0E/TT LT0Z/0E/TT I39dnd IANIHY NOILdI¥IS5d HIAGHAN

Inaa % FTACTIVAY HINOW FONYTYE dIX gt-L102
403 ALIALLOVY

G8°09 :pajaijdwo) aeaj TEOST § Ianemjuag i
™ LTOE/0E/ IANT J0Iydd Ayzey :xof

5T cabwra

HILYMINId J0 YOWITIA HO4

ddd THNLIANIIXI

ONY JONIATE

WY Y60 LTOZ/90/:



O

O

@

00°00T (59°'629°62) (68 v¥B'L) 69°629°'62 00°0 STUNLIONIAX3 % SANNIATY J0 IIb
Br -89 09°L28°S6 52°%22'8 ok ZL1'802 00° 000 ‘¥0E SAYNLIANIIXT TYIOI
FAA: 1A S6°LET 09 9E°6GLE S0 Z0B'LET 00°000 “F0OE SANNIATY "TY¥IOI
tpung Ia3eM - 165 PUny
8k 89 09°LZB’G6 G2 bEZ’8 0b-2LT'002 00°000'F0E STUNLIANIAXE THLOI
85" LE LE"bEK ‘2T 00" 0 £9°616°L 00°000°02 pred 3salajul 000°'566-£05-165
60°'60T (007 00D‘S) 000 00°000°09 007000 °SS TedTaUTIgd - S0TAISS 3924 000°066-ED5-165
p0"682 (BO'FPL'IZ) 00°0 80°bETLE 00°005°TT Aer3ano te3Tden 000°0L6-E0G-T6S
00" 0 007000 FF 00°0 00" 0 00°000°vP asuadxg uoyiefoaidaq 000" 896-£06-166
00°0§ 00° 005 00°0 00° 005 00°000°'T -dxg =6easod 000°b06-E0G-T6S
0070 007005 000 000 00°00% Butystiqng 000°006-£05-T65
00°L 00°0E6 00°0 0o0°oL 00°000°'T Bututeay 3 uoTlIEONPE 000°298-£06-166
06°0 00° 00§ 00°0 00'0 00°004 Butbpo1 2 TaaEll 000 098~£0G-T6G
LG 1Y LL*2SL'T £2°L08 X AFR TN 00°000'E sdTysiaquay 3 sang 000 0ZB-£06-T66
60°9L Sk 956 {sy g2l SS EV¥DE 00°000'% aoueansuy 000" 0TB-£0G-TES
00°0E 00°008°2 00°0 00°002°1 00°000'Y AI35 TEnjoeIjUOD/TPUCTSS9T01d 000 0DB-E0G-T6S
G9°6 b6 TGS 'ET 00°0 90" BYE ‘T 007000 ‘ST sattddns buriexadp 000" 0FL=E05-T6G
12°85 00°0SB°6T 00°0 00°069 ‘LZ 00°005'LY ssuadxg uywpy (00" 9ZL-E05-T65
00° 00T 000 00°0 00°005°L 00°005°L 9340 000 02L-£05-16G
Eb bL 19°220°t 0Z°0v9 6E°LLE'T 00°000°F Teausy 3uawdrnba 000 0F6-205-T65
20°82 S9°GEV'T 00°0 GE' 09§ 00°000°2 aouruajuUTeH ¥ ITedsy 000'0E6-Z05~T6G
66°1G L8 LLS 0T 9T ¥25°'T £1°226 21 00 00s‘ce S8TITTTIIN 000'026-Z05-T66
r9°g2 oS vL6’'e 000 05°520°T 00°000'F AI2S TENIDBPIJUOD,/ TEUOTESII0IG 000 008-205-165
YE"F6 ir 922 00°0 65 ELL'E 00" 000'F saTtddng buriezadp 000 0bL-Z05-165
GL" P9 %6 ZG6E 28 Lk 9k Lb9 00" 000'T ~dx3 on/eatd 13foTdury 000°9TL-20S-T6G
ar'6L 62 €26 5022t TL'9LSE 00°005 ‘¥ s3TJouag aafordum 000" 2TL-Z05-T6S
EE"09 91" 166G 59°9L9 PB°BFQ'E 00°000°ST Azetes/saben 000" 20L-205-T6S
9L L9 LO"219°t 00°0 £6°LBE‘E 00°000°S Tejusy jusudinby 000" 0b6-T0S-T6S
00°00T (00" D6E‘E) 00°000°€E 00°06E‘E 00'0 soupuajuTel 3 217eday 000 DE6-T0S-TES
05 %% L6°bBSS 00°0 £E0°SkE 00°000°T s8T3TITIN 000°026-10G-T6S
FG°STIT (ST 2£6) 00°0 ) A 00°000°9 AIRS TEN3ORIJUOD/TRPUCTSS3301d 000°00B8-10G-T&S
00°00T (10" BBV ‘T) 00°0 T0°¥hb'T 00'0 satiddng Butiezado 000 0FL-T0G~TES
TE BV 1F°GEB 91° 5% 65" 599 00°00S°T ‘dxg oW/eoTa iaiotdud 000°9TL-TOS-T6S
68°E£IT (EF°GGG) b9 BLY EF"GGG'F 00 000’y s3T32uag ealordwum 000" ZTL-T0S-165
91 LY 92 L6S’Y 6L S6L [T A1) 00°000'bT K1etes/saben 000 20L-T0S-16%
sainjlTpuadxy
Tz 8L S6°L6T 99 9€°6LE G0°Z08'LER 00°000'v0OE SANNIATY 'THIOL
86°EB8 12°508'F 000 BL bET ST 00°000°0€E E35EaT/sIuUay D00 699-000-T66
00°00T (98'8BZZ) 00°0 9@*82¢ 000 psuzeg 3s=2Iajui jued 000" ¥99-000-165
90°FET (B9 OFE} 18°8F¥ ¥9°0FE’'T 00°000°T sat3feUad 000°959-000-165G
000 00°000°S 00°0 000 00°000°S 5833 UDTIDBULCD 000°9¥9-000-165S
000 00°000°€ 00°0 00°0 0c0°000’'E 323 2a39s ol Apesy-1dsg 8114 000" F¥9-000-165
F9°6L r2 296 ‘tS {5r°69) 9L LED'TITZ 00°000°592 Ta3EeM-5aTes PaILlal 000°'£¥9-000-165
sanuasay
pung 123eM - 65 pung
agsn TINYIYE LT0Z/0E/TT tI02/0€/11 1390nNE a3aNIHy NOILAIY¥IS3A HIEHAN 19
1904 % ATAIIVAY HINOW FONYIWE qLX BI-LT0Z

b1/21 :ebeg

¥0d ALIAILOVY

68’99 :pa3jeTdwo) IRSL TRIST %
LT0Z/0E/TT ONIANF gOIddd
WIIYMINGG J0 FOVTTIA ¥0d IH04dEH FTUNLIANIAXE ANY INNIATH

IsleMiuad :da
Ayaey :18s

WY Tb:60 LT02/90/2ZT



00°00T (9£°SZ®’LG) {TE"ES5H) 9E"G2h LS 00°0 SAUNLTIANIAXE 3 SINNIARY J0 L
S5t 92 9T SyA’ER 68°800°T TR ]S 00°000°PIT SAUALIANIANT TYd
28°9L 08°61¥F ‘92 85°S51T 0Z°0BS ‘LB 007000 'PIL SAONAATY TV
:pung Iamas dTysumog - 65 PU
Sh*9Z " 91'SkB‘ER 68°800°T ¥e"yST 0L 00°000°%11 SEYALIANIIXE TYIt
1L°9E 9£°592'1 00*0 ¥Z VEL 00°000°2 Trlusy Juawdinbzy 000 0b6-805-21
L9°g 00'DEB’Z 00*0 00°0LT 00°000°'E aoueuajuted ¥ iTeday 000°0E6-B0S-21
£L°8S 60'BEZ’T 6k bF12 16°T9L'T 00°000°E E3TITTTIN 000°0Z6-B05~2
060 co'o00’e 00°0 00°0 00°000°2 833 JTULAg 000° BO8-80G-2
oa-L 00" FFB'T 00°9sT 00°951 00°000°2 AZag TEn3deIjuUo)/TRUOTSERJ0Td 000 008-805-21
59°FE ¥5ESO 000 9y 9vE 00°000°T sat1ddns buriexado 000°0¥L-BOS-T1
L1991 EE"EED 8L 0T £9°9971 00°000°T ~dx3g oW/eotd aakordum 000" 9TL-B0S-Tt
LL'6B Lz 2ot L5°59 EL"LES8 00°000°T g3F3susg salordwm 000" 2TL-80G-2¢
: Foadd J 99 'pLI'E L9° 15T PE"GZE’'T D0 00S°S Axetes/sabey 000°Z0L-805-2¢
00'0 00°'000°SZ 000 00°0 00°000°SZ Ae1ino Te3frded 000° 0L6-LOG-Tt
L9'95 06 6¥9 00*0 01°058 00°006°T Teauay juawdynby 000° 0¥ 6-L0G~Zt
000 00'000°'2 00'0 00°0 00°000°'2 asueuajuiey 3 1Teday 000 0E6-LDS-2t
T6°0L 9L°186 S6°661 FA- 14 A ! 00°000'Z §2T3TTTIN 000 026-L0G-2t
BL'ET 0L*985°'e 00'0 0E"ETY 00°000°€E ATI3S Tenjoexjuo)/TRUCTSSaF0Id 000° 00B-L0S-Ti
00°S 00° 056 00°'0 00°0S 00°000°T sottddns Buyjexadp 000 0% L-L0G-Tt
€21 ¥L°9LB L0'0T 9Z7EZT 00°000'T *dxg of/ea3d zafordws 000°9TL-LOS-2H
8y kY LB'ZEB L6°85 £1°L99 00°005°T s3Tisuag safordug 000°2TL-LOS-2H
10 €} ¥G'6LZ'T 6E°ThI 9F 0ZL'T 00°000°% faeTeg/safiem 000" 20L-LOS-TH
05°E8B 00066 00°0 00°010°S 00°000°9 pTed 1se3183Ul 000" S66-E05-21
00'0 g0°000'9 0G0 00°0 00°000°9 fedtoutag - @oTal®s 39ag 000" 066-E05-21
co'0 00° 005’6 00°0 00°0 00°00S'6 Aetang fe3tded 000° 0L6-E0G-EI
0070 00°000°'8 00°0 00°0 00°000’8 asuadxg uotietasadag 000 896-E05-2t
00’00t  (00'002) 00°0 00° 002 00°0 ~dxg sbejsod 000" ¥06-E0S-2I
06°9E 00 1£9 00°0 00°6%E 00°000°T soueansux 000 0TB-£0G-Z(
L0°8S 00's22’'6 00°0 00°GLL'2t 00°000°22 asuadxg uTuwpy 000'92L-E05-T¢
sainlTpuad:
Z8'9L 08 61v ‘92 86°G5T 0Z2°'085°L8 00°000°F11 SINNIATE THLC
00°00T {26°%1T) 00°0 26 P11 00°0 pauaey 3E9123ul Yueg 000" v99-000-Z¢
ES 8L TL PET AS°SST BZ'G9L 00°000°'T sat3Teuad 000°959-000-2¢
ELT9L 00°'00£ ‘92 00°0 00°'00L’98 00°000’ETT sates Iames dTyYsuMoL ooo.memmcacum.
aNUaAi
pung zamag diysumol - gg& pul
assn FONVIVE LTI0Z2/0E/1T LTI0Z/0E/TT 139009 QIANIWY NOILdI¥DS3d HABHON ©
1908 % ITAVIIVAY HINOW FONUTYE dlX 81-L302

T :abeg

H02 ALIAILOY

gg 99 :pojeTdwo) Ivaj TeISTd %
IONI JoIddd
Jd9Y TUALIANIIXT ANY JNNIATL

L102/0E/
HALYMINIG J0 IOWITIA HOd

_ Tajemiuagd iE

fyyey :i19s

WY 60 LT0Z/90/%¢



(
p—

O

S 18F (50°bL6‘BSL'T) {68529 '62E) SO"PLb'PBEZ'E (007005 'tLp) STENLIONIAXE ¥ SINNIAIY 0 13k
9B° €9 0b 96L 6ST T 06625 'phE 09°€0Z ‘6002 00°000°'602°E SaNNd TIY - STUNLIANIdXT TYLOJ
8y°-8ST (59 LLT'665°T) 19°E06'¥T S9°LLI‘EEE’P 00°0D0s ‘vEL ‘T §aNNd TIY - SAONIATH TYLOI
it 0§ (09°66F ‘60T) (09°€E6Z'E) (DF-000'0TT) {00°00G‘6T2}) SEUNLIONIAXT % SIONIATY A0 Lin
16°'6% LO°BTIBOLT 09" €62 °‘E EG'GBT'OLT 00°000°THE STHUALIANIAXT TYLOJI
bS 6% LY BFTIE'TY og-o £EG°G8T'09 00°005 ‘12T SANNAATY TYIOJI
i100d 1030W - 199 pung
16°6F LD FTIB'OLT 09°EGT'E £6°GBT‘OLT 00" 000°TYE SHYNLIGNAAXT TYLOI
00°00T (0T°6L) 000 01 6L 00°0 #4a -asueusjutey 3 ITedey 000" 0E6-THP~T199
6L'ES Z0°BZ6‘E 0f " Z6b 86'TLS 'Y 00°005°8 #dg - tend 000 gbL-1¥b-199
0o'00T  {00°PIT) 00" 8€E 00 PIT 00°0 23TT0d - 3JURUSIUTRW 3 ITeday 000" 0E6-T0OE-T99
BL'LE ZBLLE 'Y 4 A1 Bt Zz0'c 00°000°8 aaTied - 19nd 000" 2kL-TOE-T99
EE°GS 86°6L9'TTT 20 LLY 20 0ZE’'BET 00°000°052 Aetanp teatded 000°0L6-000-T99
00°0 00°005'Le 000 00°0 00°005°Le asuadx3 uoTietosadag 000°896-000-199
09°0¥% LF 26901 ¥ PSE EGTLOE 'L 00°000°8T asueuajuter y ITedsy D00 0E6-000-T99
60°665 00°289 '€ 00°0 00°BIE’S 00°000°s aaueINSUT 000°0TB8-QD0D-T99
00°00% (Lh 8TL'T) LE 9E LE 8TIL'T (Ll ] BUTIH - Tang 000" kbL-000-T199
£1°12 19 FST‘E 9F°GT 6E°5FB 00°000°F% sa71ddns butiexado 000°0%L-000~-199
00°95 00°00%F 'V 00°0 00°00%°s 00°000°0T asuadxy uTwpy 000°9ZL-000~199
16°1E Eb°OFE EF° 59 LS 65T 00° 005 *dud oW/eoTd zafordwm 000°9TL-000-T99
19 ST EBS 8- LSE G8'916 00°006°T s3T3ouag oafoyduy 000°ZTL~000-T199
ZE"GS 9T LeL’'T tZ° 168 [ 2: 04 ¥ A 00°000°F% Kzeieg/sabey 000" Z0L-000-T99
saanyTpusadxy
IA"M") J Ly ¥iE'19 00°0 EG°GET'09 00°005 ‘12T SANNIAIY THLO0L
L2 Sk 99°616°T 0G0 PE"VBS'T 00°005°'€E pung Iamas dul-s3uay Z6S°0L9-000~T99
19° €9 8B pLZ E 0G°0 AR TA RN 00°000'6 pung iajeM-Tejuay 166°0L9-000-T99
kG 68 06*225 000 0T LLE ¥ 00° 000 pung Iamss Tejuay 065°0L9-000-T199
L' EE 02°502°1 00°0 08° k6L 00000’z pund BUTIEH-TEeIUIY 085" 0L9-000-199
05°LS 00'006°1TT 00°0 00° 00T ‘91 00'000°82 ag) I9TI0d -S3uUay TOE " 0L9-000-T99
Le"e ST '88Y 00°0 CB'TT 00° 00S ajua) dryspuartijy juag - sjuady 08Z2°0L9-000-T99
T ¥E T 16% ‘8T 00" 0 68°855'6 00" 000’82 §£129135 JED0T - s3usy €02 0L9-000-T99
LT ER 9p°rZs’s 00" 0 PG SLE'D 00°000°GT §3199135 I0(eW - s3uay 202°0L9-000-199
[ 1 10°9pT1°GST ) ) 66°ESE'ST 00°005‘0E pung Teasuag - sjuay 10T*0L3-000-199
00°00T (06°€E0T) co'o 06°€£01 00°Q pauied 3s52183Ul jueq 000 ¥99-000-199
sanuaaoy
Tood 1030 - 199 pund
agsn FONYTYE LTOZ/0E/TT LT0Z/0E/TT 139009 QIANIWNY NOILATHYOS3IA HEEHAN 19
lsag 4 FTAVTIVAY HINOHW AINYIVE GLA 81-L102

FI/FI rabeg

¥0J ALIATLOW

5g°99 :pajardwo) amaj TEDSTI %
LT0Z/0E/TT ONIONIT QOIHdd
YALYMINId JO FOVWTITIIA d¥0d

LHOd3Y JUNLIANAIXT ONY INNIATY

Iajemijuag :dd
Ayaey :x9sq

WY Tv:60 LT0Z/90/2T



12/07/2017 02:48 PM CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF PENTWATER Page: 1/2

User: Kathy CHECK DATE FROM 11/01/2017 - 11/30/2017

DB: Pentwater

Check bate Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Amount
Bank HUNCK Huntington Bank - Checking

11/03/2017 HUNCK  65(E) 0188 Delta Dental 435,92
11/03/2017 HUNCK  66(E) 0251 VSP Vision Svs Plan 117.44
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44065 0517 American Read Machinery Company 477.02
11/08/2017 HUNCE 44066 0114 AT&T Mobility 79.87
11/08/2017 HUNCE 44067 0468 Bringedahl, Blake 90.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44068 0015 BSsA Software 1,745.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44069 0002 Cintas Corporation 43.77
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44070 0518 CHNA Surety 55.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44071 0467 Combs, Pat 50.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44072 0003 Consumers Energy Co. Payment Center 6,728.43
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44073 0180 Creative Product Source, Inc. 119.57
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44074 0019 Dickenson, David dba C&D Cleaning 3,819.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44075 0007 Frontier 90.08
11/08/2017 HUNCE 44076 0519 Hofmann, BAustin 75.00
11/08/2017 HUNCE 44077 0520 Hofmann, Khole 75.00
11/08/2017 HUNCE 44078 0456 Infrastructure Alternatives 6,116.38
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44079 0521 Kenney, MiKaylyn 50.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44080 0021 Klotz Auteo Parts Inc. 153.78
11/08/2017 HUNCE 44081 0091 Lighthouse Car Care Center LLC 38.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44082 0092 Ludington Door Co. 377.50
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44083 0074 Malburg's Sanitation Service, Inc. 156.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44084 0295 MICHIGAN STATE PQLICE 1,800.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44085 0413 Miller, Glen 45.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44086 0139 Pentwater Lake Association 30.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44087 0345 Seymour's Sales & Service LLC 9,437.04
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44088 0522 Sproul, William 90.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 440849 0069 State Of Michigan 807.23
11/08/2017 HUNCEK 44090 0117 State Of Michigan 10.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44091 0523 Stewart, Iain 90.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44092 0240 Tarnowski, HNate 70.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44093 0066 Terminix of West Michigan Inc. 77.40
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44094 0026 Trace Analytical Laboratories, Inc. 106.10
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44095 0010 Verizon Wireless 116.04
11/08/2017 HUNCK  440%6 0045 Wilbur-Ellis Company LLC 640.20
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44097 0025 Wilson, Gary 50.00
11/08/2017 HUNCK 44098 001t ¥erox Corporation 292.90
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44099 a127 Adams Marine Construction, Inc. 1,000.00
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44100 0525 Anderson, Katherine 10.400
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44101 @00z Cintas Corporation 226.64
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44102 4005 DTE Energy Company 623.28
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44103 0071 Gillison's Variety Fabrication, Inc 200.64
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44104 0020 Integrity Business Soluticns 163.49
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44105 0201 Jobbins, Henry 64.91
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44106 0021 Klotz Auto Parts Inc. 15.46
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44107 0225 MHP - Lakeshore Campus 14.40
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44108 0524 Personnel Concepts 20.90
11/14/2017 HUNCEK 44109 0493 Plummer's Environmental Services In 2,121.85
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44110 0023 Republic Services, Inc. 401.65
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44111 0031 Russell, Mike 1,790.00
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44112 0117 State 0f Michigan 130.00
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44113 0347 The Power House Inc. 1,181.66
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44114 0026 Trace Analytical Laboratories, Inc. 562.20
11/14/2017 HUNCEK 44115 0164 Turning Leaf Landscaping Inc. 347.28
11/14/2017 HUNCK 44116 0029 WEX Bank 1,094.19
11/15/2017 HUNCK 44117 0410 Paul O'Grady 650,00
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44119 0049 All Seasons Porta-Jdons LLC 72.00
11/21/2017 HUNCEK 44120 0002 Cintas Corpeoration 43.77
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44121 0008 Great Lakes Energy 214.4%9
11/21/2017 HUNCE 44122 0441 Huntington National Bank 254.88
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44123 0020 Integrity Business Solutions 252.67
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44124 0526 Listerman, Rande 187.25
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44125 0112 Michigan Municipal League 61.80
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44126 0062 Neo Selutions, Inc. 12,835.20
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44127 0058 Pentwater Lake Improvement Board 2,500.00
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44128 0052 Ruggles & Scn Masonry 3,000.00
11/21/2017 HUNCK 44129 0240 Tarnowski, Nate 229.50
11/21/2017 HUNCE 44130 0502 BROWN, CHRISTOPHER 1,561.39
11/21/2017 HUNCK 67 (E) 0251 VSP Vision Svs Plan 135.46
HUNCK TOTALS:

Total of 68 Checks: 66,521.23
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00
Total of 68 Disbursements: 66,521.23

Bank STRTS Street Improv Account



12/07/2017 02:48 BM CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF PENTWATER Page: 2/2

User: Kathy CHECK DATE FROM 11/01/2017 - 11/30/2017
PB: Pentwater

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Amount
11/08/2017 STRTS 1010 0231 Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc 41,455.55
11/14/2017 STRTS 1011 0132 Hallack Contracting, Inc. 173,973.67
11/14/2017 STRTS 1012 0469 S0ils & Structures Inc. 3,415.30
11/21/2017 STRTS 1013 0231 Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc 44,814.55

STRTS TOTALS:

Total of 4 Checks: 263,659.11
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00
Total of 4 Disbursements: 263, 659.11

REPORT TOTALS:

Total of 72 Checks: 330,180.34
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00

Total of 72 Disbursements: 330,180.34




Managers Report
December 11, 2017

DPW TEAM

Leaf pick up has gone off very well this year. We received many compliments from the majority of the

residents. A big thanks to our crews! We will end leaf pick up Friday December 15", Machines will be
put away for the winter storage. Refinishing of tables and benches is taking place over the next month
along with our first arrival of snow.

PLOW TRUCK

As reported last month the wrong truck chassis was ordered from western Star, there will be a delay
until March for the delivery. The truck will now be a 2019 model. The Chassis model with higher ground
clearance for the under body scraper was missed at time of order, this would have been $2,522.00
more for this frame design. Sterling Truck has agreed to split the cost, ($1,261.00 change order for
Village ) and western Star is supplying a 2019 for the same price as a 2018.

2017 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

The first phase of Street Improvement has been completed. We have a minor punch list that will be
completed in the spring per the terms of the contract. Over all the project went very well. “right of
way” communications with residents for the next phase will be important up front. Excited to dive into
the next phase for Feb. bidding. We should have designs ready to roll out to committee in the coming
weeks.

OFFICE STAFF

We will have BSA training in the office for three days next week to bring all the staff up to date and
implement the full use of our software. There are parts of these modules that we are not using to the
full potential that will save time {$) and give us better reports. There will be some restructuring of our
budget for 2018 year as well. We are working on many fronts to bring a close to 2017 and move forward
to 2019 cycle planning.



MARINA / PARKS

We will be under way in the next couple weeks with prelim plans for the marina upgrades and grant
submission. Beautification projects are moving forward on many fronts as well. DDA, for the Showcase
Block as well as the entrance parks, especially with the generous contribution of the Jr. Women's club.

I would like to wish The board, staff and Residents a very blessed Merry Christmas, and Happy New year.
The Village is looking great with its festive decorations. After the holidays we have a lot of work to
prepare for the coming Budget, Utility rate structure and grant submissions for the projects in 2018....
Looking forward to a very exciting year.

Respectfully Submitted,

Christopher Brown
Village Manager



To: Pentwater Village Council

David W. Bluhm, P.E.

From: Client Services Manager
Fleis & VandenBrink
ccC: Chris Brown, Pentwater Village Manager
Date: December 11, 2017
Re: Pentwater Street Improvement Project (SIP) Update

The following provides an update of November engineering/construction activities for the SIP program:

e Construction work is now complete for the 2017 street work. There is punch list work to be completed
still which will be addressed in the spring. Payment to Hallack Construction in the amount of
$267,220.76 is recommended for work completed to date. 2017 project close-out documentation and
final payment will be completed in the spring of 2018.

* Smoke testing for the areas of improvement in 2018 was completed on Noverber 20%. No new
significant sanitary inflow problems were found.

» 2018 Street/Utility Projects design work has been ongoing. F&V met with the Services Committee on
November 9" to review the 2017 construction project, to review the updated 2018 plans and to discuss
the project schedule.

Anticipated work for the rest of December will include the following:

s Completion of final plans, specifications and cost estimates for 2018 Street/Utilities projects. F&V will
review this information with the Services Committee in early January to approve the final construction
projects with project bidding in mid-January 2018.

¢ As a follow-up to the field meeting held with Pentwater Wire Products (PWP} in October, estimates of
improvements to street/parking/loading will also be reviewed with the Services Committee in January
and a follow up meeting with PWP will be scheduled.

e F&VY will update the project portal link on the Village's website after the December 11 Council meeting.

316 Morris Ave,, Sulte 230

Muskegon, Mt 49440

P: 231.726.1000

F: 231.726.2200

Progress Memao 12-7-17 DWB2 www.fvang.com



JuslIlion

uodai s sounseel ] Ajaypenty ayy 104 spuaiwedinbal ay} sjjyng yosyspeslds siyl :ojoN

Jainseal] Jajemjuad jo abeja

WI4dO/v3dO/LdOIN ‘Uels)si apuey

‘Ajlasoouls
it y9'Z51'86€'9_$ spung (201
8LELIT) cr'z59'092  $ a aoys)sam
81120720 WAL Y- A ao Jueg souwe]
SUON oL'6€zTL  § Bupoeyd do ued jueg sje1s Aqjeys
81/80/50 6TovE'LST  $ a jueg sje1s Aqleys
61/80/S0 6£'029'092  § a Joq1eH ojes
81/.2/S0 ob'essisz § ao UIB}SOMULION
auoN S0'9EZOLL  § ooy JsnL, 38N11 Uope||B}SUCD

auoN LLLor'Z0s' L § spuog anoldw| j8enS
auoN pO'0BS'ELO'L  § lessus9 ssei IW

auoN 0Ev8e'sc ¢ sysodaq pIeD yueg

suoN 19/0'6LL  $ puOg XEL 09 /102
euoN 66°06E'LIZT & do uso yueg ucyBuguny

Kinjen spung adAL SWeN Junoody
210Z JequianoN
pu3 uOW

aosuejeg pung
Jajemiuad jo abe|A



Pentwater Police Department
Activity Report
November 2017
Synopsis

The activity detailed below represents a 50% decrease in law enforcement
activity Village wide. Total monthly activity was 28 cases.

Activity Highlight

On 11/6/2017 Officers took a report of a runaway juvenile. The juvenile was
located and was referred to juvenile court.

On 11-8-2017 Officers responded to a report of a disorderly juvenile subject. The
juvenile was recovered and returned to Pentwater School E| room.

On 11-25-2017 Officers responded to a disorderly person in the 200 block of
Hancock Street. The suspect attempted to assault a subject standing on the
street. When officers arrived the suspect fled on foot. After a short foot pursuit
and suspect was wrestled to the ground and arrested. The officer involved suffer
a broken bone and was assisted by two Holland men. The suspect was lodged
in Oceana Co. Jail

The subject was charged with Resisting a Police Officer causing injury and
Disorderly person.

On 11/27/2017 Officers took a report of lllegal Entry, MDOP, and Probation
Violation. The case remains under investigation.

On 11/28/2017 Officers transported on Montcalm County suspect after he was
arrested on an outstanding warrant for OWI. The warrant stemmed from an
accident that occurred in June of this year.

Ongoing Efforts

The Department is adjusting to the new staffing levels.

Winter parking restriction are in effect. No parking is allowed on Village streets
between 2:00 AM to 6:00 AM between November and March. Citizens should
take notice and act according.

The Department is accepting Property Check Requests. Forms are available at
the Village Hall.

Respectfully submitted, Chief Laude Hartrum



Pentwater Police Department — Activity Detail

Complaints Totals

Assists

Animal Bite

Attempt to locate

City Ordinance

Deer Permit Issued

Disturbance

Medical Assists

Missing Person

Paper Service

Property Checks

Runaway

Suspicious Situation

Traffic Stops

N I Y P S N T Y P N N Y

oWl

Total 28

Tickets

One traffic ticket was issued for speeding.




Nov 9 - Dec 13, 17

Nov 9 - Dec 13, 17

Date

11/09/2017
11/09/2017
11/09/2017
11/08/2017
1111412017
11/14/2017
1111472017
1111472017
11/14/2017
11727712017
12/05/2017
12/05/2017
12/05/2017
12/05/2017
12/058/2017

12/13/2017
12/13/2017
12/13/2017
1211372017

Pentwater Fire Department
Prepaids & To Be Paid

2663
2664
2665
2666
2667
2668
2669
2670
2671
2672
2673
2674
2675
2676
E-pay

2677
2678
2679
2680

December 13, 2017

Name Amount
Pentwater Post Office -76.00
Michael Jenassen, O.D. -92.00
Christopher J Gebhart -207.78
Workplace Health Ludington -140.50
Beckman Bros. Redi-Mix -100.00
DTE Energy -51.59
Republic Services #240 -462.50
Business Card -425.77
MML. Worker's Comp Fund -503.00
Oceana County EMS -329.90
Karen R Smith -73.88
Charter Communications -269.74
Republic Services #240 -466.04
Hart Automotive Supply -131.92
United States Treasury -34.44
Total Prepaids $ (3,365.06)
Workplace Health Ludington -82.00
Michigan State Firemen's Association -75.00
Consumers Energy -209.01
Verizon Wireless -76.02
Total to be Paids $ (442.03)

TOTAL PREPAIDS & TO BE PAIDS

$ 3,807.09



VILLAGE OF PENTWATER

ON PENTWATER LAKE AND LAKE MICHIGAN
327 South Hancock Street, P.0. Box 622, Pentwater, Michigan 49449
(231) 869-8301 FAX (231) 869-5120
www.Pentwatervillage.org

ZONING ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
December 1, 2017

The following is a summary of activity conducted by the Zoning Administrator in November,
2017.

Code Enforcement

Nothing outstanding at this time.

Planning Commission

The Planning Commission met on November 15, 2017 to hold its regular meeting where they
approved a tentative geographic area for the Downtown Pentwater Sub-Area Plan to be amended
to the existing 2015 Master Plan Update. Additional information will be coming out from my
office regarding the Planning Commission’s planning process for your January meeting.

Zoning Board of Appeals

The Zoning Board of Appeals did not meet in November.
Zoning Permits
The following Zoning Permits were issued in November, 2017,

1. 128 Green St. to move the remaining portion of the existing house and the garage, outside
of the Pentwater Community.

2. 1001 Park Street for a new 24 x 24 garage.

Sincerely,

Keitiv J. Eduwvords

Keith Edwards
Zoning Administrator

Page1of1



DR. CLAUDIA RESSEL-HODAN

DDA Chair | DDA@PentwaterVillage.org

December 11,2017

Report to Council

- DDA Marketing Committee met on November 1st, 2017 1o approve
the marketing effort of “Christrnas in the Village" Saturdays in
December. Business owners that put in $100 towards advertisement
were matched with $100. Advertisement on radio, print and
Facebook was purchased with the money. A total of $3,000 has
been put towards this effort.

- DDA Hancock Improvements held a workshop on November 20th to
discuss the Showcase block (between 2nd and third east side). The
next workshop in December 15th at 10AM all are welcome.

- The DDA has received numerous compliments on the snowflakes,
the board is looking forward to adding to these decorations next
year.

- The DDA will meet on Wednesday December 13th at 8:30AM

Respectfully Summited,

Claudia J. Ressel-Hodan Psy.D.



rlisterman@BentwatervilIaﬂe.orﬂ

From: Joe Verlin <jverlin@gabridgeco.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 30, 2017 11:46 AM
To: 'rlisterman@pentwatervillage.org'

Cc: Neil Hammerbacher

Subject: Proposal for Financial Consulting Services
Attachments: Pentwater.pdf

Good Morning Rande,
First, thank you for your time this morning to answer the questions that | had - our discussion was very helpful!

| have attached our propoesal for financial consulting services. | wanted to highlight a few areas. First, Neil
Hammerbacher could be onsite as early as December 12 to begin the engagement. The plan would be to have
everything complete that week, including us providing you with a letter of comments and recommendations. Second,
Neil has 30+ years of combined experience as a governmental auditor and a finance director / treasurer for local units of
government in Michigan. He has also attended several BS&A training sessions and is able to hold himself out as an
expert user of BS&A. | believe that he would be a fantastic resource for the Village for this consulting engagement, and,
on a go-forward basis. Lastly, we would be willing to “credit” the consulting engagement fees back to the Village if the
Village were to go to bid for its upcoming financial statement audit and if the audit bid were awarded to our firm.

It truly would be a privilege faor us to serve the Village! Please don’t hesitate to contact me with any questions about our
proposal.

Best regards,
Joe Verlin, cpa, cGFM

Gabridge & Company
3940 Peninsular Brive SE Suite 130 / Grand Rapids, MI 49546

P 616-538-7100x 17
F 616-538-2441
WA ggbrl;igg;g COIT

Financial Advisors / Certified Public Accountants / Consultants

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email as well as any attachments are for the exclusive and confidential use of the intended recipient. If you
are not the intended recipient, please do not read, distribute or take action in reliance upon this message. If you have received this in error,
please notify us immediately by return email and promptly delete this message and its attachments from your computer system.



A PROPOSAL FOR FINANCIAL CONSULTING SERVICES

For the Year Ending March 31, 2018

VILLAGE OF PENTWATER

Submitted by

GABRIDGE & CQ

WEALTH ADYISORS + CEATIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ¢ €O

Joe Verlin, CPA, CGFM

3940 Peninsular Drive SE - Suite 130
Grand Rapids, M1 49546

Ph | 616.538.7100 ext. 17

Werlin@Gabridgeco.com November 30, 2017



Table of Contents

Letter of Transmittal

Scope 3
Authorized Contact
Proposed Fees 5

Firm Profile

Firm Qualifications & EXperience;: - au i e i ot it fn 28 die s i sos dorr iy s B

Team Qualifications & EXperienCe e 7

OB S IVIC S e )
Mandatory Criteria

License to Practice in Michigamn . siu. i e simmesmns. o go s e g s 12 ety 9

Independence & Conflict of Interest e 9
Summary Qualifications

Similar ENQagementsS: = s s i s s it Tmd s £ 0 i g i 15 S R T e 10

Continuing Education and External Quality Control Review . .....12

Additional Data

Non-Discrimination Clause 12

2 GABRIDGE & CO



Gabridge & Company, PLC will consult with the Village of Pentwater (the "Village”) to
accomplish the following:

s Reviewing the Village's books and records.

» Assisting with significant account reconciliations and providing assistance with the
related journal entries.

e Reviewing year-to-date payroll data to ensure correct processing of the Villages 2017
form W2's, the 2017 form W3, the 2017 form 5081, and quarterly 2017 form 941’s.

e Providing assistance to the Village verifying that all bank accounts are reconciled
through November 2017 using the BS&A general ledger reconciliation module.

« Reviewing the Village’s key internal control activities and providing a letter of
comments and recommendations for key controls that could be strengthened within
the Village.

« Provide assistance to the Village in preparing for the implementation of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement’s No. 74 and 75 (the new OPEB reporting
standards).

Gabridge & Company, PLC will provide the consulting services listed above. The Village will
assume all management responsibilities for the consulting services that we provide; to
oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; to evaluate the adequacy and results of the
consulting services; and to accept responsibility for the consulting services.

We feel that Gabridge & Company, PLC would be a great fit for the Village to provide the
consulting services listed above. Neil Hammerbacher would be on-site at the Village for the
engagement. He has over 30 years of combined experience auditing local units of government
and serving as a treasurer / finance director at local units of government in Michigan. Further,
he has over 10 years of experience using BS&A and has attended several of the training
session provide by BS&A to become an expert user of all modules.

Additionally, our firm audits over 140 local units of government and nonprofit agencies in the
State of Michigan. We are specialized in the governmental accounting practice and have an
extensive library of "best practices” that we provide to our clients. We are very confident that
our depth of Industry knowledge would greatly benefit the Village!

i GABRIDGE & CQ



Authorized Contact

Joe Verlin, CPA, CGFM

Principal in Charge - Audit Services
3940 Peninsular Drive SE — Suite 130
Grand Rapids, MI 49546

Ph | 616.538.7100 ext. 17

We warrant that Joe Verlin is authorized to bind Gabridge & Company, PLC to the terms set
forth in this proposal.

GABRIDGE & C2



Proposed Fees

VILLAGE OF PENTWATER
Proposed Consulting Fees

For the Period Ending March 31, 2018

Report
CONSULTING HOURS / RATE Field Work Prep
Hours Hours

Partner in Charge
Manager
Senior Staff

DISCOUNT (20%)

TOTALS

Partner in charge would be Joe Verlin and the Manager would be Neil Harnmerbacher.

The fees are based on standard hourly rates, less a 20% discount. Fees would be reduced if
the total engagement hours were less than budgeted. However, fees would not increase if
total hours exceeded the budgeted amounts.

If Gabridge & Company, PLC were awarded the March 31, 2018 financial statement audit of
the Village, then all of the above consulting engagement fees would be credited against the
audit fees to show our commitment to the Village!

o GABRIDGE & CQ



Firm Qualifications and Experience

Gabridge & Company currently has over 140 governmental and non-profit audit clients
throughout the State of Michigan. We also have 15 employees, including eight governmental
audit professionals. Gabridge & Company actively recruits prospective governmental audit
staff members by seeking only individuals who are committed to serving our dients with
integrity; while also being committed to becoming industry experts and providing proactive
customer service. Gabridge & Company has offices located in Traverse City and Grand Rapids.
Gabridge & Company will assign only accountants with extensive governmental experience to
the audit of the Village, including a principal in charge and an independent review principal.
Joe Verlin {Principal in Charge of Audit Services) will be assigned full-time to the audit and
will remain the primary contact for the Village for the duration of the engagement term(s).
Gabridge & Company is a member of the Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants,
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Governmental Audit Quality Center,
the Michigan Municipal League and the Michigan Local Government Association.

Gabridge & Company is dedicated to serving municipal clients. We offer newsletters,
webinars, and conferences at no charge to provide our clients with timely updates and best
practices for the rapidly changing governmental financial regulations. We advise our clients
before, during, and after the audit - and strive to be much more than what you would expect
from your auditor.

Our firm has not been involved with any state or federal desk reviews or field reviews of its
audits. Additionally, our firm has not been involved with any disciplinary action taken by state
regulatory bodies or professional organizations. Our firm will also follow the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants “Interpretation 501-3, Failure to Follow Standards
and/or Procedures or Other Requirements in Governmental Audits.” Our firm will not
subcontract any of the auditing services included in this proposal.

Qur proposal will remain valid for 120 days past the deadline for submittal.

We warrant that all information provided in connection with this proposal is true and accurate
to the best of our knowledge.

— GABRIDGE & CO



Team Qualifications and Experience

PRINCIPALS

Joseph Verlin, CPA, CGFM
Principal in Charge

Education
BA, Accounting
Ferris State University

Memberships
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA)
Michigan Municipal League
Michigan Local Government Management Association
AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Center
Association of Government Accountants {(AGA)
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)

Committees
Co-Chair of the MICPA Governmental Accounting and Auditing Task Force

Recent Speaking Engagements
MICPA sponsored governmental auditing conferences

Internal Controls for Local Units of Government
Improving Audit Timelines
Implementing GASB 54, 63 & 65
Single Audit Update
Preventing Fraud, Waste and Abuse

AGA sponsored governmental accounting event
Implementing GASB 63 and 65

Joe will serve as the engagement principal with responsibility for planning and technical
execution of all of Gabridge & Company’'s services. Joe will ensure appropriate levels of
staffing for your engagement, monitor your satisfaction, and manage regular communication
with your executive leadership. Joe currently serves as the engagement executive or
independent review partner on aver 75 of our firm’s clients.

Joe is certified to practice public accounting in Michigan. loe is also a Certified Government
Financial Manager (CGFM), has earned the Advanced Single Audit certification from the
AICPA, and is a member of the Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) Special
Review Cormmittee for the Certificate of Achlievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
Program.

s GABRIDGE 8 CQO



MANAGER

Neil Hammerbacher, CPA

Neil provides valued support in the role of audit manager. He is in the field routinely
performing audit services. Neil serves in a similar role on a significant number of other
governmental audits.

Education
BA, Business Administration
Saginaw Valley State University

Mem hi
Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA)
AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Center
Government Finance Officers Association

Professional History
+ Over eighteen years of governmental accounting and auditing experience in public
accounting
s Also held a treasurer and finance director positions at a Township and City for over
fifteen years

s Has several years full-time experience using BS&A for assessing, general ledger,
fixed assets, cash receipts, payroll, accounts payable, and long-term debt reporting

-8- GABRIDGE & CQ



Other Services

Gabridge & Company, PLC is able to provide consulting services to its clients throughout the
vear at no additional charge. We feel that it Is important to interact with our clients
throughout the vyear, especially with the rapidly changing governmental accounting
pronouncements. We find that these proactive discussions will ultimately reduce the
upcoming audit workload for both our firm, and more importantly, the staff of the Village.
Joe Verlin will be your primary cantact throughout the year to ensure continuity.

Qur consulting services include (but are not limited to); assistance with BS&A, budgeting,
general accounting questions, human resource consulting, financial reporting, internal control,
grant compliance, implementation and assistance to the Village with any new accounting
principles required by GASB, or as required by State or Federal Law, etc. Our customer
service policy allows us to handle our audit clients informal questions and consultations
throughout the year without additional billings, unless the scope of the consultation becomes
a project in nature. In these cases, our consulting projects will be documented in an
engagement letter that will set forth the timing, scope and related fees.

Licensed to Practice in Michigan

Gabridge & Company is a CPA firm actively registered to practice public accounting in the
State of Michigan. Also, alt assigned CPA’s from Gabridge & Company are properly registered
and licensed to practice in public accounting in Michigan.

Independence and Conflict of Interest

Gabridge & Company, PLC is independent of the Village as defined by generally accepted
auditing standards and the U.S. General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards
(2011 revision). Gabridge & Company is also independent of ali component units of the
Village, as defined by the aforementioned standards. Gabridge & Company has had no
professional relationships involving the Village or any of its agencies, component units or
primary governments during the past five years that would impair independence. Lastly,
Gabridge & Company will give the Village written notice of any professional relationship
entered into with the Village, or any of its agencies, component units or primary governments
during the period of this agreement.

We warrant that no work included within this proposal will be subcontracted by Gabridge &
Company,PLC.

s GABRIDGE & CO




Similar Engagements

Following is a list of similar engagements with other governmental entities in the State of
Michigan:

Oceana County

Scope of Work — Governmental Financial Audit and Single Audit
Principal in Charge - Joe Verlin

Contact - Robert Sobie, County Administrator

Phone - (231) 873.4835 ext. 6702

Township of Pentwater

Scope of Work — Governmental Financial Audit
Principal in Charge — Joe Verlin

Contact — Sue Johnson, Township Clerk

Phone - (231) 869.6231

Mason-Oceana 911

Scope of Work -Governmental Financial Audit
Principal in Charge - Joe Verlin

Contact - Ray Hasil, Director

Phone - (231) 869.7911

Further references are available upon request.

-10- GABRIDGE & CQ



Following is a list of all Michigan governmental and nonprofit clients for which our firm has
performed an audit for during the past five years:

Villages Nonprofits
Village of Bear Lake
Village of Benzonla

Charter Townshlps
Association of Legal Writing Directors Charter Township of Breitung
Big Brother Big Sister Charter Township of Colorma

Village of Beulah Choices of Manistee County Charter Township of Gun Plain
Village of Detour Community Action of Allegan County Charter Township of Mamuette
Village of Fife Lake Dispute Resolution Education Resources Charter Township of Muskegon
Village of Henor Jubilee Jobs Charter Township of Nlles
Village of Kalkaska Marshall Area Economic Dev. Alliance

Village of Lake [sabella Mi. Center for Clinical Systems Imp. Libraries

Village of Lyons QASIS of Cadillac Brandon Township Public Library

Village of Muir Senior Services of Van Buren County Briggs District Uibrary
Village of Sheridan Staircase Youth Services Cheboygan Area Public Library
Village of Thompsonville Coopersvllle Area District Library

Townships

Township of Acme
Township of Aliegan
Township of Arcadia
Township of Bear Lake
Township of Blue Lake
Township of Centervilie
Township of Cheshire
Township of Covert
Township of Croton
Township of Detour

Township of Drumemond Island

Township of Everett
Township of Fredonia
Township of Garfield
Township of Glimore
Township of Grattan
Township of Hagar
Township of Hartford
Township of Holton
Township of Hopkins
Township of Howell
Township of LaGrange
Township of Mancelona
Township of Manistee
Township of Pentwater

Township of Pleasanton

Township of Salem
Township of Solon
Township of Stronach
Township of Trout Lake
Township of Tuscarora
Township of Tyrone
Township of Vevay

Citles

Clty of Big Rapids
City of Boyne City
City of Cadillac
City of Chebaygan
City of Fennville
City of Flushing
City of Greenville
Clty of Laingsburg
City of Marshall
City of New Baltimore
City of Parchment
City of Pottervilie
Clty of St. Johns
City of Wayland
City of White Cloud

Countles

Alger County
Allegan County
Baraga County
Calhoun County
Cheboygan County
Chippewa County
Gogebic County
Luce County
Manistee County
Missaukee County
Montcalm County
Oceana County
St. Joseph County

Schools
Bessemer Area Schools
Grace Christlan School

Eau Claire District Library
Femdale Area District Library
Galesburg-Charleston District Library
Grant Area District Ubrary
Hartford tibrary

Lakeland Library Co-op
Marshall District tibrary
Otsego District Library
Parchment Community Library
Suburban Library Cooperative
Watesvliet District Ubrary
White Lake Community Library

Other

Bear Lake Improvement Board

Calhoun County Cons. Dispatch Authority
Cass County Transit Authority

Central Cass Interocal Fire Department
City of Pottervile TIFA

Fennville Area Fire Department

Fife Lake Area Utility Authority

Firekeepers Local Revenue Sharing Board
Jordan Valley Emergency Med. Svcs. Auth.
Kent County Conservation District

Lake Leelanau Lake Assoclation

Ludington Mass Transit Authority

Manistee 9-1-1 Authority
Manistee-Blacker Almport
Match-E-Be-Nash-5he-Wish Rev. Shg. Board
Miami University Men's Rugby Association
Mid-Michigan Area Cable Comm. Consortium
North Berrien Fire Rescue Board

Oceana County Medical Care Facllity

Paint Creek Trailways Commission

Portland Area Fire Authority

Township of Wayland
Township of Whitefish
Townshlp of Wilson

Manistee Area Public Schoois Sclon-Centerville Fire Department

Michigan Center School District St. Joseph County Transportation Authority
North Adams-leromre Public Schaols Straits Regional Ride

Vanderblit Area Schools Twin Clities Area Transportation Authority
William C. Abney Acadeny Washtenaw County Conservation District
Woodland School White Cloud-Sherman Utilltles Authority

11- GABRIDGE & CQ



Continuing Education and External Quality Control Review

Continuing Education

Gabridge & Company, PLC and its professional staff members meet all continuing education
and external quality control requirements as stated in the U.S. General Accounting Office’s
Government Auditing Standards (2011 revision).

External Quality Control Review

Included with this proposal is Gabridge & Company’s most recent external quality control
review (peer review) for which government engagements were included. The peer review is
for the period ended June 30, 2015. Our firm continues to meet the external quality control
review requirements by actively monitoring our staff member’s continuing education and
training (through frequent staff meetings, attending pertinent governmental conferences, and
self-study courses focused on governmental accounting and auditing), participating in
governmental associations, and internal inspections of audit files by partners not involved
with the audit.

We will provide delivery dates during the planning phase of the audit and confirm these dates
during our planning meeting with management. Following Is our anticipated timetable to
complete the engagement:

Description Date(s)
Onsite Consulting December 12, 13, and 14
Provide Comments and Recormmdations Letter December 15

Non-Discrimination Clause

Gabridge & Company, PLC does not discriminate against any individual for employment with
respect to such person’s hire, tenure, terms, conditions, privileges of employment, or any
matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of such person’s race, color,
religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, or disability as defined by law.

13- GABRIDGE & CQ



Village of Pentwater
Council
2018 Open Meeting Resolution
No: Joil-11-19

Moved by supported by , that the following
Resolution be adopted.

BE IT RESOLVED that the meetings of the Village of Pentwater Council
during 2018 will be held according to the schedule below. The meetings
will begin at 6:00 P.M. and will be held at the Village of Pentwater Hall.

Meetings shall be held on the following dates:

January 8"
February 12"
March 12"
April 9®

May 14"

June 11™

July 9"
August 13®
September 10®
October 8"
November 12"
December 11"

This Resolution was adopted pursuant to Public Act 267 of 1976 at a
meeting of the Village of Pentwater Council on December 11, 2017, by a

vote of . This Resolution was posted at the Village Office on
December 12, 2017.

Village of Pentwater

327 Hancock St.

Pentwater, MI 49449 Rande Listerman, CPFA/CPFIM/MiCPT

Village Clerk/Treasurer



Michigan Department PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR

Of Transportation

22078 (11/16) GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES Page 10f2

No+- J017-12~20

This Performance Resolufion is required by the Michigan Depariment of Transportation for purposes of issuing to a
municipal utility an “Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way", or an "Annual Application and Permit for
Miscellaneous Operations Within State Highway Right of Way".

RESOLVEDWHEREAS, the Village of Pentwater

(city, village, township, etc.)

hereinafter referred to as the "GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY " periodically applies to the Michigan Department of
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as "PERMIT," to
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY agrees that:

1.

Each party to this Agreement shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or
omissions during the performance of this Agreement, as provided by law. This Agreement is not
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted,
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising
out of the performance of this Agreement.

If any of the work performed for the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY is performed by a contractor, the
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY shall require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in
litigation, the State of Michigan, the DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee’s, against any claims
for damages to public or private property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the
work, except for claims that result from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the
contractor achieves final acceptance of the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY. Failure of the GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY to require its contractor to indemnify the DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered
a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT.

Any work performed for the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as

a contractor for the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT.
The DEPARTMENT shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY, or their subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT
without the DEPARTMENT'S specific prior written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the
PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY.

The GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims
being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan
Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and
those contracting governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same
occurs, for the purposes of the PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving
the State of Michigan, the DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek
and obtain any necessary relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money
damages.



MDOT 22078 (11/16) Page 2 of 2

5. The GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT,
promptly restore and/or correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway Right of Way
resulting from the installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY'S facilities according to a PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.

6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY requires
insurance con its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named
insured the State of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents,
and employees thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the
DEPARTMENT and alt officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent he

DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a
PERMIT.

8. This resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY or
the DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party.
It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY with regard to any
PERMIT which has already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for

the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY.

Title and/or Name:

Rande Listerman, Clerk/Treasurer

Kate Anderson, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer

Chris Brown, Manager

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by

the Village Council

(Name of Board, etc)
of the Village of Pentwater of Oceana
(Name of GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY) (County)

at a_Council meeting held on the __11th _ day

of December A.D. 6 P.M.

Signed Title ClerkiTreasurer




VILLAGE OF PENTWATER
327 South Hancock Street, P.O. Box 622, Pentwater, MI 49449
(231) 869-8301 - FAX (231) 869-5120
www.pentwatervillage.org

RESOLUTION 2017- 12.-2]
Authorization of Golf Carts on Village Streets

WHEREAS, Public Act 491 of 2014 recently amended Public Act 300 of 1949, commonly
known as the Michigan Vehicle Code, being MCL 257.1 through MCL 257.923; and,

WHEREAS, Public Act 491 of 2014 created a new section to the Michigan Vehicle Code
which allows for the limited and regulated use of Golf Carts on public streets and highways which
is found at MCL. 257.657a; and,

WHEREAS, under the amended Michigan Vehicle Code, local units of government may allow
for the limited and regulated use of Golf Carts on their streets and highways under the terms and
conditions specified in MCL 257.657a via the adoption of a Resolution; and,

WHEREAS, the Village of Pentwater desires to allow for the limited use of Golf Carts on its
street and highways as permitted and regulated by MCL 257.657a; and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: that under the conditions contained in Michigan
Vehicle Code, as amended, being MCL 257.657a, the Village of Pentwater does hereby allow for the
use of Golf Carts on the streets and highways of the Village of Pentwater which conform to the
requirements of Public Act 491 0f2014; and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that all Golf Carts and the operators
and owners of Golf Carts to be operated on the streets and highways within the Village of Pentwater
shall be registered with the Pentwater Police Department, and the Golf Cart owners and/or operators
shall receive and conspicuously affix a registration sticker to said Golf Cart before operation on the
streets and highways within the Village of Pentwater;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: the Village of Pentwater reserves the
right to rescind this approval if in the future it is determined that the limited and regulated use of Golf
Carts on the Village’s streets and highways has become a safety hazard or is deemed to be a nuisance.

1, Rande S. Listerman, the duly qualified and acting Clerk ofthe Village of Pentwater, Oceana



County, Michigan (the “Village) do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of
a resolution adopted by the Village Council at a meeting held on , 2017, the
original of which is on file in the Village Office. Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to
and in compliance with Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan, as amended.

Date Rande S. Listerman Christopher Brown
Village of Pentwater, Village of Pentwater,
Village Clerk Village Manager



No: do\1- 1w d3
REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) has established the
statewide Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) Program to empower communities to
shape their future and maximize economic potential: and

WHEREAS, RRC is a program that provides technical assistance to and certifies Michigan
communities who actively engage stakeholders and plan deliberate, fair, and consistent
processes; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Pentwater recognizes the value of the RRC Program and seeks to
improve its redevelopment readiness via a detailed review of existing development
processes; and

WHEREAS, the RRC program includes evaluating and strengthening development-related
partnerships; there

RESOLVED, that the Village of Pentwater Council is willing to participate in the MEDC
Redevelopment Ready Communities Program.

Rande Listerman, Village Clerk/Treasurer

Jeff Hodges, Village President

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the Resolution Ready Communities
Resolution adopted by the Village of Pentwater, Pentwater, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on the 11
day of December, 2017, and that the meeting was held and the minutes were filed in compliance with Act No.
267 of the Public Acts of 1976.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I have affixed my official signature this 11* day of December, 2017.

BY

Rande Listerman, Village Clerk/Treasurer



Michigan Department - SUB-RECIPIENT APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION OF
Ur kot TITLE VI AND EEO COMPLIANCE AND ASSURANCES Page 10f 2

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, related statutes, and regulations provide that no person shall on the grounds of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. The Civil Rights Restoration Act
of 1987 amended Title VI to specify that entire institutions receiving Federal funds whether schools, colleges, government
entities, or private employers must comply with Federal civil rights laws, rather than just the particular programs or activities
that receive federal funds.

if you need assistance completing this form or additional information, please contact us by phone (517) 373-6457 or
TDDITTY through the Michigan Relay Center at (800) 849-3777.

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION NAME TELEPHONE NUMBER
Village of Pentwater {231) 869-8301

STREET ADDRESS FAX NUMBER

327 South Hancock {231) 849-5120

P.O. BOX CITY

622 Pentwater

COUNTY STATE ZIP CODE
Oceana Ml 49449

Recipients of federal assistance must comply with the following procedures for monitoring and ensuring
non-discrimination in any program, service, or activity, as required by 23 CFR Appendix A of Part 230 Special
Provisions.

1. Sub-recipient must establish an Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. Sub-recipient must accept as their operating policy
the following: It is the policy of the Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, or national origin. Such action shall include: employment,
promotion, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticaship pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job-training.

2. Sub-recipient must designate and make known to MDOT an Equal Employment Opportunity Officer. The individual
appointed must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active program of equal employment opportunity
and must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.

3. The sub-recipient equal opportunity policy must be disseminated to all staff members authorized to hire, supervise, promote
and discharge employees, or who recommend such action. To ensure that the policy is known, periodic meetings of
supervisory and personnel office employees must be conducted not less than once every six months.

4. Al employees, prospective employees and potential sources of employees should be advised of the sub-recipients equal
opportunity policy. Notices and posters selting forth the employer's equal opportunity policy must be in place in areas
readily accessible to the aforementioned. The employers/contractor's equal opportunity and procedures to implement the
policy must be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate
means.

5. When advertising for employees, the sub-recipients must include, in ali advertisements for employees the notation “An
Equal Opportunity Employer.” All such advertisements must be published in newspapers or other publications having a
large circulation among minority groups in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.

6. Sub-recipients must establish a process to investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination and take appropriate
corrective action, including a method to inform all complainants of their avenues of appeal. Complainants should be
advised of their right to file a complaint with governmental agencies (i.e., the State recipient, the Federal agency providing
funds to the state recipient, the Department of Civil Rights, the Depariment of Justice, etc.)

A copy of 23 CFR Appendix A to Subpart A of Part 230 Special Provisions is available upon request. It provides
specific information regarding equal employment opportunity responsibilities,

NAME AND TITLE OF THE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY OFFICER (this individual must be capable of
effectively administering and promoting an active equal opportunity program and is assigned adequate authority and
responsibility to carry out these duties.)

NAME (Please Print) COMPANYIORGANIZATION TITLE (Please Print)
Rande Listerman Clerk/Treasurer




MDOT 0106 (07/17)

Page 2 of 2

| certify that | will abide by the equal employment opportunity requirements in this application. | also understand the provisions
of Title VI and related statutes. This certification is also my assurance that | will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color,

national origin, gender, age, or disability.

AUTHORIZED CORPORATE OR ORGANIZATIONAL OFFICER

TITLE
Council President

DATE
121117

NOTE: You must notify MDOT within 45 days if any of the information you provided on this application changes.

Please return this application to: Title VI Coordinator
Michigan Department of Transportation
425 W. Ottawa Street
Lansing, Mi 48933
(517) 241-7462
MDOT-TitleVi@michigan.gov

APPROVAL

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS AREA BELOW




VILLAGE OF PENTWATER

TITLE V1
NON-DISCRIMINATION PLAN

327 S. Hancock St.

P.O. Box 622
Pentwater, MI 49449
Phone: 231-869-8301

Fax: 231-869-5120
Website: pentwatervillage.org

Title VI Coordinator:
Rande S. Listerman, Clerk/Treasurer
Phone: 231-869-8301 ext.303
Fax: 231-869-5120
Email: rlisterman@pentwatervillage.org




TABLE OF CONTENTS
O] T 7 O M O e e S S e o e S e e e e e e e 3
INtrOdUEtiOn. . ..ocuieiieririerersiniirrisiiiieesttcessnsaesssetseseseesssosassssosensasessnsasessasassonnses 4

Non-Discrimination Policy Statement......ccceveccisncisiesisiisiicissenescsssseressssasersssnsessasenss ?

Standard Title VI ASSUFANCES ....ccuvieiiiiiiiiienririneinititessnreesessrerersncissnesrsssssesassessens 9
Authorities ......c.coeiiieiinieiennns T S e ST S S ST e e 11
Definitions .ccocveeiereririreriririniitirietirsetsiessseesenststsessssenstsssasersrsaserersrsesassesssassons 12
AdmINISIrAtion «..cevvereiieiiiiiiiiiriiiisiiisinsisiiresisissisestatsssscessasenessssessssssesessasaseseses 14
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) .................. R A I T AT rreyespay [
Environmental Justice (EJ) cc.uciiiciiniiiiciniiienrisnnciostiosesisnccsoscsssscesssssssnassenssensane 22
Filing a Title VI Complaint ......cccccoevvivivennnnes e e e e e e e e el e e S e e e e ey
LT 41 S S T S S S P S P T P TR T 26
Appendix A — Required Contract LANGUAGE ....c.ccccruieiiisirirnriisirirerstsisoreseisescresessens 28
Appendix B — Transfer of Property ...cccccveceiiiiiiireniirecitcescscesseccnsasessssccssosssnens 30
Appendix C — Permits, Leases, and LiCenses ......ccccuvererierircernsirinrernrceeccissaciccenses 32

Appendix D — Title VI Complaint Form ......ccccceevvieeinnincens R DO OO0
Appendix E — Determine/Distinguish Significant/Non-Significant Effects ..................... 35

Appendix F — Program Compliance/Program review Goals for Current Plan Year ........ 36



THE VILLAGE OF PENTWATER
ORGANIZATION CHART

Village President

Village Council

Village Manager

Village
Clerk/Treasurer

Title VI Coordinator

Police Chief

I

Deputy Deputy

Clerk/Treasurer

Clerk/Treasurer




INTRODUCTION

Pentwater was formed in 1867 and is a charming lakeside Village north of Muskegon, south of
Ludington in Oceana County. ER Cobb and Andrew Rector built the first buildings. Then, Lumber
Baron Charles Mears built the channel from Lake Michigan to Pentwater Lake. Pentwater’s
population grows in the summer months as it has become a destination for vacationing families as
it serves as one of the premier beach destination in the state. The Village of Pentwater serves all
people, including minority populations, low-income populations, the elderly, persons with
disabilities, and those who traverse the village. The Village of Pentwater recognizes its
responsibility to provide fairness and equity in all of its programs, services, and activities, and that
it must abide by and enforce federal and state civil rights legislation.

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, is the overarching civil rights law which prohibits
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin, in any program, service or activity that
receives federal assistance. Specifically, Title VI assures that, “No person in the United States
shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied
the benefit of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
federal assistance.” Title VI has been broadened by related statutes, regulations and executive
orders. Discrimination based on sex is prohibited by Section 324 of the Federal-Aid Highway Act,
which is the enabling legislation of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). The Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 prohibit unfair and
inequitable treatment of persons as a result of projects which are undertaken with Federal financial
assistance. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the intent of Title VI to include all
programs and activities of federal-aid recipients and contractors whether those programs and
activities are federally funded or not.

in addition to statutory authorities, Executive Order 12898, “Federal Actions to Address
Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations,” signed in February
of 1994, requires federal agencies to achieve Environmental Justice as part of its mission by
identifying disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects of its
programs, policies, and activities on minority populations and low-income populations.
Environmental Justice initiatives are accomplished by involving the potentially affected public in
the development of transportation projects that fit within their communities without sacrificing
safety or mobility. In 1997, the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) issued its DOT
Order to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations to
summarize and expand upon the requirements of Executive Order 12898 on Environmental
Justice. Also, Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited
English Proficiency (LEP),” provides that no person shall be subjected to discrimination on the
basis of race, color, or national origin under any program or activity that receives Federal financial
assistance.

As a recipient of federal financial assistance, the Village of Pentwater must provide access to
individuals with limited ability to speak, write, or understand the English language. The village
will not restrict an individual in any way from the enjoyment of any advantage or privilege enjoyed
by others receiving any service, financial aid, or other benefit under its programs or projects.
Individuals may not be subjected to criteria or methods of administration which cause adverse



impact because of their race, color, or national origin, or have the effect of defeating or
substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the program because of race, color or
national origin. Therefore, the primary goals and objectives of the Village of Pentwater’s Title VI
Program are:

1. To assign roles, responsibilities, and procedures for ensuring compliance with Title VI
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related regulations and directives;

2. To ensure that people affected by the village’s programs and projects receive the
services, benefits, and opportunities to which they are entitled without regard to race,
color, national origin, age, sex, or disability;

3. To prevent discrimination in the Village of Pentwater’s programs and activities,
whether those programs and activities are federally funded or not;

4. To establish procedures for identifying impacts in any program, service, or activity that
may create illegal adverse discrimination on any person because of race, color, national
origin, age, sex, or disability; or on minority populations, low-income populations, the
elderly, and all interested persons and affected Title VI populations;

5. To establish procedures to annually review Title VI compliance within specific
program areas within the village;

6. To set forth procedures for filing and processing complaints by persons who believe
they have been subjected to illegal discrimination under Title VI in the village’s
services, programs or activities.

As a sub-recipient of federal transportation funds, the Village of Pentwater must comply with
federal and state laws, and related statutes, to ensure equal access and opportunity to all persons,
with respect to transportation services, facilities, activities, and programs, without regard to race,
color, national origin, sex, socio-economic status, or geographical location. Every effort will be
made to prevent discrimination in any program or activity, whether those programs and activities
are federally funded or not, as guaranteed by the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987.

The Village of Pentwater shall also ensure that their sub-recipients adhere to state and federal law
and include in all written agreements or contracts, assurances that the sub-recipient must comply
with Title VI and other related statutes. The Village of Pentwater, as a sub-recipient who
distributes federal transportation funds, shall monitor their sub-recipients for voluntary compliance
with Title VL. In the event that non-compliance is discovered, the village will make a good faith
effort to ensure that the sub-recipient corrects any deficiencies arising out of complaints related to
Title VI; and that sub-recipients will proactively gauge the impacts of any program or activity on
minority populations and low-income populations, the elderly, persons with disabilities, all
interested persons and affected Title VI populations.



Discrimination under Title VI

There are two types of illegal discrimination prohibited under Title VI and its related statutes. One
type of discrimination which may or may not be intentional is “disparate treatment.” Disparate
treatment is defined as treating similarly situated persons differently because of their race, color,
national origin, sex, disability, or age.

The second type of illegal discrimination is “disparate impact.” Disparate impact discrimination
occurs when a “neutral procedure or practice” results in fewer services or benefits, or inferior
services or benefits, to members of a protected group. With disparate impact, the focus is on the
consequences of a decision, policy, or practice rather than the intent.

The Village of Pentwater’s efforts to prevent such discrimination must address, but not be limited
to, a program’s impacts, access, benefits, participation, treatment, services, contracting
opportunities, training, investigation of complaints, allocation of funds, prioritization of projects,
and the overarching functions of planning, project development and delivery, right-of-way,
construction, and research.

The Village of Pentwater has developed this Title VI Plan to assure that services, programs, and
activities of the village are offered, conducted, and administered fairly, without regard to race,
color, national origin, sex, age, or disability of the participants or beneficiaries of federally funded
programs, services, or activities (see Title VI Assurances).



THE VILLAGE OF PENTWATER
NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT

The Village of Pentwater reaffirms its policy to allow all individuals the opportunity to participate
in federal financially assisted services and adopts the following provision:

10.

11.

“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected
to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance.” In applying this policy, the village and its sub-recipients of federal
funds shall not:

Deny any individual with any service, opportunity, or other benefit for which such
individual is otherwise qualified;

Provide any individual with any service, or other benefit, which is inferior (in quantity or
quality) to, or which is provided in a different manner from that which is provided to others;

Subject any individual to segregated or disparate treatment in any manner related to such
individual’s receipt of services or benefits;

Restrict an individual in any way from the enjoyment of services, facilities or any other
advantage, privilege or other benefit provided to others;

. Adopt or use methods of administration, which would limit participation by any group of

recipients or subject any individual to discrimination;

Address any individual in a manner that denotes inferiority because of race, color, or
national origin;

Permit discriminatory activity in a facility buiit in whole or in part with federal funds;

Deny any segment of the population the opportunity to participate in the operations of a
planning or advisory body that is an integral part of a federally funded program;

Fail to provide information in a language other than English to potential or actual
beneficiaries who are of limited English speaking ability, when requested and as
appropriate;

Subject an individual to discriminatory employment practices under any federally funded
program whose objective is to provide employment;

Locate a facility in any way, which would limit or impede access to a federally-funded
service or benefit.



The Village of Pentwater will actively pursue the prevention of any Title VI deficiencies or
violations and wil! take the necessary steps to ensure compliance. If irregularities occur in the
administration of the program’s operation, procedures will be promptly implemented to resolve
Title VI issues all within a period not to exceed 90 days.

The Village of Pentwater designates Rande S. Listerman, Clerk/Treasurer as the Title VI
Coordinator. The Clerk/Treasurer will be responsible for initiating and meonitoring Title VI
activities and other required matters, ensuring that the Village of Pentwater complies with the Title
VI regulations and pursues prevention of Title VI deficiencies or violations. Inquiries concerning
the Village of Pentwater and Title VI may be directed to the Clerk/Treasurer, 327 S. Hancock St.,
P.O. Box 622, Pentwater, MI 49449; phone: 231-869-8301; fax: 231-869-5120; email:
rlisterman@pentwatervillage.org.

Jeffrey Hodges
Village President

Rande S. Listerman
Clerk/Treasurer/Title VI Coordinator



THE VILLAGE OF PENTWATER
TITLE VI ASSURANCES

The Village of Pentwater (hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”) hereby agrees that as a condition to
receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, it witl comply with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 USC 2000d-42 USC 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred
to as the “Act”), and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-
Assisted Programs for the Department of Transportation — Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations™) and other pertinent directives, to the end that in
accordance with the Act, Regulations, and other pertinent directives, no person in the United States shall,
on the grounds of race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits
of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Recipient
received Federal financial assistance from the Department of Tramsportation, including the Federal
Highway Administration, and hereby gives assurances that it will promptly take any measures necessary to
effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by subsection 21.7 (a) (1) and (b) of the Regulations.

More specifically and without limiting the above general assurance, the Recipient hereby gives the
following specific assurance with respect to the Federal Aid Highway Program:

1. That the Recipient agrees that each "program" and each "facility” as defined in subsections 21.23(e)
and 21.23(b) of the Regulations, will be (with regard to a "program") conducted, or will be (with
regard to a "facility") operated in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to, the
Regulations.

2. That the Recipient shall insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids for work or
material subject to the Regulations and made in connection with all Federal Aid Highway Programs
and, in adapted form in all proposals for negotiated agreements:

“The (Recipient), in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42
U.S.C 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Reguiations, Department of
Transportation, SubTitle A, Office the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally
assisted programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, hereby
notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in any contract entered into pursuant to
this advertisement, minority business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit
bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race,
color, or national origin in consideration for an award.”

3. Thatthe Recipient shall insert the clauses of Appendix A of this assurance in every contract subject
to the Act and the Regulations.

4. That the Recipient shall insert the clauses of Appendix B of this assurance, as a covenant running
with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting a transfer of real property, structures, or
improvements thereon, or interest therein.

5. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a
facility, the assurance shall extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection
therewith.



10.

That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the acquisition of
real property or an interest in real property, the assurance shall extend to rights to space on, over or
under such property.

That the Recipient shall include the appropriate clauses set forth in Appendix C of this assurance,
as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, permits, licenses, and similar
agreements entered into by the Recipient with other parties: (a) for the subsequent transfer of real
property acquired or improved under the Federal Aid Highway Program; and (b) for the
construction or use of or access to space on, over or under real property acquired, or improved
under the Federal Aid Highway Program.

That this assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance
is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the
form of, personal property, or real property or interest therein or structures or improvements
thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the Recipient or any transferee for the longer of the
following periods: (a) the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the
Federal financial assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar
services or benefits; or (b) the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession
of the property.

The Recipient shall provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the
Secretary of Transportation or the official to whom it delegates specific authority to give reasonable
guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, transferees, successors
in interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such program will comply
with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the Act, the Regulations and this assurance.

The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to
any matter arising under the Act, the Regulations, and this assurance.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants,
loans, contracts, property, discounts or other Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to
the Recipient under the Federal Aid Highway Program and is binding on it, other recipients, sub-grantees,
contractors, sub-contractors, transferees, successors in interest and other participants in the Federal Aid
Highway Program. The person or persons whose signatures appear below are authorized to sign this
assurance on behalf of the Recipient.

Village of Pentwater

Jeffrey Hodges, President Date

10



AUTHORITIES

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC 2000d to 2000d-4; 42 USC 4601 to 4655; 23
USC 109(h);

Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 provides that no person in the United States shall, on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin (including Limited English Proficiency), be excluded
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance (please refer to 23 CFR 200.9 and
49 CFR 21). Related statutes have broadened the grounds to include age, sex, low income, and
disability.

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 also broadened the scope of Title VI coverage by
expanding the definition of terms “programs or activities” to include all programs or activities of

Federal Aid recipients, sub-recipients, and contractors, whether such programs and activities are
federally assisted or not (Public Law 100-259 {S. 557] March 22, 1988).

Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, 23 USC 324: No person shall on the ground of sex be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving federal assistance under this title or carried on under this title.

Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 USC 6101: No person in the United States shall, on the
basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under, any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 PL 101-336: No qualified individual with a disability
shall, by reason of his/her disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or otherwise be subjected to discrimination by a department, agency, special purpose district or
other instrumentality of a state or local government.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973: No qualified individual with a disability shall,
solely by reason of his/her disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity that receives or benefits from
federal financial assistance.

USDOT Order 1050.2; Standard Title VI Assurances

E012250: Department of Justice Leadership and coordination of Non-discrimination Laws.

EO12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations.

28 CFR 50.3: Guidelines for the enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

EO013166: Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency.

i1



DEFINITIONS

Adverse Effects — The totality of significant individual or cumulative human health or
environmental effects including interrelated social and economic effects, which may include, but
are not limited to: (See Appendix E for additional discussion of “significant”)

- Bodily impairment, infirmity, illness or death

- Air, noise and water pollution and soil contamination

- Destruction or disruption of man-made or natural resources

- Destruction or diminution of aesthetic values

- Destruction or disruption of community cohesion or community’s economic vitality

- Destruction or disruption of the availability of public and private facilities and services

- Adverse employment effects

- Displacement of person’s businesses, farms or non-profit organizations

- Increased traffic congestion, isolation, exclusion or separation of minority or low-income
individuals within a given community or from the broader community

- Denial of, reduction in, or significant delay in the receipt of benefits of the village programs,
policies and activities

Federal Assistance — Includes grants and loans of federal funds; the grant or donation of federal
property and interests in property; the detail of federal personnel, federal property or any interest
in such property without consideration or at a nominal consideration or at a consideration which
is reduced for the purpose of assisting the recipient, or in recognition of the public interest to be
served by such sale or lease to the recipient; and any federal agreement, arrangement or other
contract which has, as one of its purposes, the provision of assistance.

Limited English Proficiency - Individuals with a primary or home language other than English
who must, due to limited fluency in English, communicate in that primary or home language if the
individuals are to have an equal opportunity to participate effectively in or benefit from any aid,
service or benefit provided by the village.

Low-Income — A person whose median household income is at or below the Department of Health
and Human Service Poverty guidelines (see http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty/).

Low-Income Population — Any readily identifiable group of low-income persons who live in
geographic proximity and, if circumstances warrant, geographically dispersed/transient persons
(such as migrant workers or Native Americans) who will be similarly affected by a proposed
village program, policy or activity.

Minority — A person who is:

a. Black — A person having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa;

b. Hispanic — A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other
Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race;

c. Asian American — A person having origins in any of the original people of the Far East,
Southeast Asia, the Indian sub-continent, or the Pacific Islands; or

12



d. American Indian and Alaskan Native — A person having origins in any of the original people
of North America and who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or
community recognition.

Minority Population — Any readily identifiable groups of minority persons who live in geographic
proximity and, if circumstances warrant, geographically dispersed/transient persons (such as
migrant workers or Native Americans) who will be similarly affected by a proposed village

program, policy or activity.

Non-Compliance — A recipient has failed to meet prescribed requirements and has shown an
apparent lack of good faith effort in implementing all the requirements of Title VI and related
statutes.

Persons — Where designation of persons by race, color or national origin is required, the following
designation ordinarily may be used; “White not of Hispanic origin”, “Black not of Hispanic
origin”, “Hispanic”, “Asian or Pacific Islander”, “American Indian or Alaskan Native®”.
Additional sub-categories based on national origin of primary language spoken may be used,
where appropriate, on either a national or a regional basis.

Program — Includes any road or park project including planning or any activity for the provision
of services financial aid or other benefits to individuals. This includes education or training, work
opportunities, health weifare, rehabilitation, or other services, whether provided directly by the
recipient of federal financial assistance or provided by others through contracts or other
arrangements with the recipient.

Recipient - Any state, territory, possession, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, or any political
subdivision, or instrumentality thereof, or any public or private agency, institution, or organization,
or other entity, or any individual, in any state, territory, possession, the District of Columbia, or
Puerto Rico, to whom Federal assistance is extended, either directly or through ancther recipient,
for any program. Recipient includes any successor, assignee, or transferee thereof, but does not
include any ultimate beneficiary under any such program.

Significant Adverse effects on Minority and Low-Income Populations — An adverse effect that:

a. is predominantly borne by a minority population and/or a low-income population, or

b. will be suffered by the minority population and/or low-income population and is shown to be
appreciably more severe or greater in magnitude than the adverse effect that will be suffered
by the non-minority population and/or non-low-income population.

Sub-Recipient — Any agency such as a council of governments, regional planning agency, or
educational institution, for example, that received Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
funds through the State DOT and not directly from the FHWA. Other agencies, local governments,
contractors, consultants that receive these funds are all considered sub-recipients.

15



ADMINISTRATION - GENERAL

The Village of Pentwater designates Rande S. Listerman, Clerk/Treaurer, as the Title VI
Coordinator (hereinafter referred to as the “Title VI Coordinator™). Mrs. Listerman shall have lead
responsibility for coordinating the administration of the Title VI and related statutes, programs,
plans, and assurances.

Complaints: If any individual believes that he/she or any other program beneficiaries have been
the object of unequal treatment or discrimination as to the receipt of benefits and/or service, or on
the grounds of race, color, national origin (including Limited English Proficiency), sex, age or
disability, he/she may exercise his/her right to file a complaint with the village. Complaints may
be filed with the Title VI Coordinator. Every effort will be made to resolve complaints informally
at the lowest level.

Data Collection: Statistical data on race, color, national origin, English language ability and sex
of participants in and beneficiaries of the village programs; e.g., impacted citizens and affected
communities will be gathered and maintained by the village. The gathering procedures will be
reviewed annually to ensure sufficiency of the data in meeting the requirements of the Title VI
prograrn.

Program Reviews: Special emphasis program reviews will be conducted based on the annual
summary of Title VI activities, accomplishments, and problems. The reviews will be conducted
by the Title VI Coordinator to assure effectiveness in their compliance of Title VI provisions. The
Title VI Coordinator will coordinate efforts to ensure the equal participation in all their programs
and activities at all levels. The village does not have any special emphasis programs at this time.

Title VI Reviews on Sub-Recipients: Title VI compliance reviews will be conducted annually by
the Title VI Coordinator. Priority for conducting reviews will be given to those recipients of
federal (U.S. Department of Transportation) funds with the greatest potential of impact to those
groups covered by the Act. The reviews will entail examination of the recipients’ adherence to all
Title VI requirements. The status of each review will be reported in the annual update and reported
to relevant U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) modes upon request.

Annual Reporting Form: The Title VI Coordinator will be responsible for coordination,
compilation, and submission of the annual reporting form data to the Michigan Department of
Transportation (MDOT), Civil Rights Program Unit via the Sub-Recipient Annual Certification
Form (MDOT form #0179) by October 5.

Title VI Plan Updates: If updated, a copy of Title VI Plan will be submitted to the MDOT, Civil
Rights Program Unit, as soon as the update has been completed, or as soon as practicable, and no
later than 30 days if significant changes are made.

Public Dissemination; The Village of Pentwater will disseminate Title VI Program information to
the village employees and to the general public. Title VI Program information will be submitted
to sub-recipients, contractors and beneficiaries. Public dissemination will include inclusions of

14



Title VI language in contracts and publishing the village’s Title VI Plan within 90 days of approval
on the main page of the Village of Pentwater’s internet website, at pentwatervillage.org.

Remedial Action: The village, through the Title VI Coordinator, will actively pursue the
prevention of Title VI deficiencies and violations and will take the necessary steps to ensure
compliance with all program administrative requirements. When deficiencies are found,
procedures will be promptly implemented to correct the deficiencies and to put in writing the
corrective action(s). The period to determine corrective action(s) and put it/them in writing to
effect compliance may not exceed 90 days from the date the deficiencies are found.

15



LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP)

On August 11, 2000, President William J. Clinton signed an executive order, Executive Order
13166: Improving Access to Service for Persons with Limited English Proficiency’, to clarify Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. It had as its purpose, to ensure accessibility to programs and
services to otherwise eligible persons who are not proficient in the English language.

This executive order stated that individuals who do not speak English well and who have a limited
ability to read, write and speak, or understand English are entitled to language assistance under
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 with respect to a particular type of service, benefit, or
encounter’’. These individuals are referred to as being limited in their ability to speak, read, write,
or understand English, hence the designation, “LEP,” or Limited English Proficient. The
Executive Order states that:

“Each federal agency shall prepare a plan to improve access to its federally conducted
programs and activities by eligible LEP persons. Each plan shall be consistent with the
standards set forth in the LEP Guidance, and shall include the steps the agency will take to
ensure that eligible LEP persons can meaningfully access the agency’s programs and
activities.”

Not only do all federal agencies have to develop LEP plans as a condition of receiving federal
financial assistance, recipients have to comply with Title VI and LEP guidelines of the federal
agency from which funds are provided as well.

Federal financial assistance includes grants, training, use of equipment, donations of surplus
property, and other assistance. Recipients of federal funds range from state and local agencies, to
nonprofits and organizations. Title VI covers a recipient’s entire program or activity. This means
all parts of a recipient’s operations are covered, even if only one part of a recipient’s organization
receives the federal assistance. Simply put, any organization that receives federal financial
assistance is required to follow this Executive Order.

The Village of Pentwater receives funds from the US Department of Transportation via the Federal
Highway Administration.

The US Department of Transportation published Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’
responsibilities to Limited English Proficient Person in the December 14%, 2005 Federal
Register. il

The Guidance implies that the Village of Pentwater is an organization that must follow this

guidance:

This guidance applies to all DOT funding recipients, which include state departments of
transportation, state motor vehicle administrations, airport operators, metropolitan planning
organizations, and regional, state, and local transit operators, among many others. Coverage
extends to a recipient’s entire program or activity, i.e., to all parts of a recipient’s operations. This

16



is true even if only one part of the recipient receives the Federal assistance. For example, if DOT
provides assistance to a state department of transportation to rehabilitate a particular highway on
the National Highway System, all of the operations of the entire state department of
transportation—not just the particular highway program or project—are covered by the DOT
guidance.

Elements of an Effective LEP Policy

The US Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division has developed a set of elements that may be
helpful in designing an LEP policy or plan. These elements include:

Identifying LEP persons who need language assistance

Identifying ways in which language assistance will be provided

Training Staff

Providing notice to LEP persons

The recommended method of evaluating accessibility to available transportation
services is the Four-Factor Analysis identified by the USDOT.

il R e

These recommended plan elements have been incorporated into this plan.
Methodology for Assessing Needs and Reasonable Steps for an Effective LEP Policy

The DOT guidance outlines four factors recipients should apply to the various kinds of contacts
they have with the public to assess language needs and decide what reasonable steps they should
take to ensure meaningful access for LEP persons:

1. The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be
encountered by a program, activity, or service of the recipient or grantee.
2. The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program.

3. The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient
to the LEP Community.
4. The resources available to the Village of Pentwater and overall cost.

The greater the number or proportion of eligible LEP persons, the greater the frequency with which
they have contact with a program, activity, or service and the greater the importance of that
program, activity, or service, the more likely enhanced language services will be needed. The
intent of DOT’s guidance is to suggest a balance that ensures meaningful access by LEP persons
to critical services while not imposing undue burdens on small organizations and local
governments.

Smaller recipients with more limited budgets are typically not expected to provide the same level
of language service as larger recipients with larger budgets.

17



The DOT guidance is modeled after the Department of Justice’s guidance and requires recipients
and sub-recipients to take steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities to
LEP persons. More information for recipients and sub-recipients can be found at
http://www.lep.gov.

The Four-Factor Analysis

This plan uses the recommended four-factor analysis of an individualized assessment considering
the four factors outlined above. Each of the following factors is examined to determine the level
and extent of language assistance measures required to sufficiently ensure meaningful access to
Village of Pentwater services and activities that may affect their quality of life. Recommendations
are then based on the results of the analysis.

Factor 1: The Proportion, Numbers and Distribution of LEP Persons

The Census Bureau has a range for four classifications of how well people speak English. The
classifications are: ‘very well,” ‘well,” ‘not well,” and ‘not at all.” For our planning purposes, we
are considering people that speak English less than ‘very well’ as Limited English Proficient
persons.

As seen in Table #1, the Census 2013 Data for the Village of Pentwater shows a small number of
the population that speak English less than ‘very well.’

TABLE #1
LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME # of Individuals | Percentage
Population § years and over 860
English only 849 98.7%
Language other than English 1 1.3%
Speak English less than "very well” 3 0.3%
Spanish 4 0.5%
Speak English less than "very well" 0 0.0%
Other Indo-European languages 7 0.8%
Speak English less than "very well” 3 0.3%
Asian and Pacific Islander languages 0 0.0%
Speak English less than "very well” 0 0.0%
Other languages o 0.0%
Speak English less than "very well" 0 0.0%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Amcrican FactFinder website
DP02: SELECTED SOCIAL CHARACTERISTICS IN THE UNITED STATES

18



Factor 2: Frequency of Contact with LEP Individuals

The village has conducted an informal survey of our employees with regard to whether they have
had encounters with LEP individuals in the performance of their job functions and found that they
have not had any encounters with LEP individuals. We have offices accessible to the public and
therefore accessible to LEP individuals. We also have staff that work in the field that could
encounter LEP individuals. Additionally, regular Council meetings are held on the 2™ Monday of
every month which would potentially bring LEP individuals to these meetings. Given the number
of LEP individuals, as displayed in Table #1 (above), the probability of our employees to encounter
an LEP individual is low.

Factor 3;: The Nature and Importance of the Program, Activity, or Service to LEP

The Village of Pentwater serves individuais throughout the village in a variety of ways including
managing roads, water, sewer, police, fire, elections, and other services to residents and other
individuals, such as visitors and those traversing the state. The nature of the services that the village
provides is very important to an individual’s day-to-day life. Therefore, the denial of services to
an LEP individual could have a significant detrimental effect. Given the number of LEP
individuals in the village, we will ensure accessibility to all of our programs, services, and
activities.

Factor 4: The Resources Available to the Village of Pentwater and Overall Cost

US Department of Transportation Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to
Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons published in the Federal Register: December 14, 2005
(Volume 70, Number 239) states:

“Certain DOT recipients, such as those serving very few LEP persons or those with very
limited resources, may choose not to develop a written LEP plan.”

The Village of Pentwater serves very few LEP persons and has very limited resources. However,
it has decided to include a LEP section in its Title VI Plan in order to comply with the Executive
Order and to ensure access and reasonable accommodations for LEP persons who may be unknown
at this time.

Safe Harbor Stipulation
Federal law provides a “Safe Harbor™ situation so that recipients can ensure with greater certainty

that they comply with their obligation to provide written translations in languages other than
English. A “Safe Harbor” means that if a recipient provides written translation in certain

19



circumstances, such action will be considered strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s
written-translation obligations under Title VI.

The failure to provide written translations under the circumstances does not mean there is non-
compliance, but rather provides a guide for recipients that would like greater certainty of
compliance than can be provided by a fact-intensive, four factor analysis. For example, even if a
Safe Harbor is not used, if written translation of a certain documnent(s) would be so burdensome as
to defeat the legitimate objectives of its program, it is not necessary. Other ways of providing
meaningful access, such as effective oral interpretation of certain vital documents, might be
acceptable under such circumstances.

Strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s written translation obligations under “Safe
Harbor” includes providing written translations of vital documents for each eligible LEP language
group that constitutes 5% or 1,000, whichever is less, of the population of persons eligible to be
served or likely to be affected or encountered. Translation of other documents, if needed, can be
provided orally.

This “Safe Harbor” provision applies to the translation of written documents only. It does not
affect the requirement to provide meaningful access to LEP individuals through competent oral
interpreters where oral language services are needed and are reasonable.

Given the small number of LEP language group members, the Village of Pentwater’s budget and
number of staff, it is deemed that written translations of vital documents would be so burdensome
as to defeat the legitimate objectives of our programs. It is more appropriate for the Village of
Pentwater to proceed with oral interpretation options for compliance with LEP regulations.

Providing Notice to LEP Persons

USDOT LEP guidance says:

Once an agency has decided, based on the four factors, that it will provide language service, it is
important that the recipient notify LEP persons of services available free of charge. Recipients
should provide this notice in languages LEP persons would understand.

The guidance provides several examples of notification including:

1. Signage, in languages that an LEP individual would understand that free language

assistance is available with advance notice.
2. Stating in outreach documents that free language services are available from the agency.

20



3. Working with community-based organizations and other stakeholders to inform LEP
individuals of the recipient’s services, including the availability of language assistance
services.

Statements in languages that an LEP individual would understand will be placed in public
information and public notices informing LEP individuals that those requiring language assistance
and/or special accommodations will be provided the requested service free of charge, with
reasonable advance notice to the Village of Pentwater.

Options and Propesed Actions

Options:

Federal fund recipients have two (2) main ways to provide language services: oral interpretation
either in person or via telephone interpretation service and written transtation. The correct mix
should be based on what is both necessary and reasonable in light of the four-factor analysis.”

The Village of Pentwater is defining an interpreter as a person who translates spoken language
orally, as opposed to a translator, who translates written language or who transfers the meaning of
written text from one language into another. The person who translates orally is not a translator,
but an interpreter.”

Considering the relatively small size of the village, the small number of LEP individuals in the
service area, and limited financial resources, it is necessary to limit language aid to the most basic
and cost-effective services. However, when requested appropriate assistance will be provided.

What the Village of Pentwater will do. What actions will the Village of Pentwater take?

o Notify the public that interpreter services are available upon request, with seven day advance
notice.

¢ With advance notice of seven calendar days, the village will provide interpreter services at
public meetings, including language translation and signage for the hearing impaired.

e The village will utilize the Translators Resource List as provided by MDOT for translation
services and verbal interpretation.

¢ The Census Bureau “I-speak” Language Identification Card will be distributed to all
employees that may potentially encounter LEP individuals.

e Once the LEP individual’s language has been identified, an agency from the Translators
Resource List will be contacted to provide interpretation services.

21



e Publications of the village’s complaint form will be made available online and upon request.

e In the event that a village employee encounters a LEP individual, they will follow the
procedure listed below:

OFFICE ENCOUNTER

1. Provide an I-speak language identification card to determine the language spoken by the
LEP individual.

2. Once the foreign language is determined, provide information to Title VI Coordinator
who will contact an interpreter from MDOT’s Translators Resource List.

3. If the need is for a document to be translated, the Title VI Coordinator will have the
document translated and provided to the requestor as soon as possible.

ROAD ENCOUNTER

1. Road crew employee will immediately contact the Title VI Coordinator for assistance,
and provide an I-speak language identification card to the LEP individual to determine
the fanguage spoken by the individual.

2. Once the foreign language is determined, provide information to Title VI Coordinator
who will contact an interpreter from MDOT’s Translators Resource List to provide
telephonic interpretation.

3. Ifthe need is for a document to be translated, the Title VI Coordinator will have the
document translated and provided to the requestor as soon as possible.

IN WRITING

1. Once a letter has been received it will be immediately forwarded to the Title VI
Coordinator.

2. The Title VI Coordinator will contact a translator from the MDOT’s Translators
Resource List to determine the specifics of the letter request information.

3. The Title VI Coordinator will work with the selected agency to provide the requested
service to the individual in a timely manner.

OVER THE PHONE

1. If someone calls into our office speaking another language, every attempt will be made to
keep that individual on the line until an interpreter can be conferenced into the line, and if
possible, determine the language spoken by the caller.



2. Once the language spoken by the caller has been identified, we will proceed with
providing the requested assistance to the LEP individual.

The Village of Pentwater’s Staff Training

The Village of Pentwater’s staff will be provided training on the requirements for providing
meaningful access to services for LEP persons.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE (EJ)

Compliance with Title VI includes ensuring that no minority or low-income population suffers
“disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effect” due to any “programs,
policies and activities” undertaken by any agency receiving federal funds. This obligation will be
met by the village in the following ways:

e When planning specific programs or projects, identifying those populations that will
be affected by a given program or project.

e If a disproportionate effect is anticipated, follow mitigation procedures.

¢ [f mitigation options do not sufficiently eliminate the disproportionate effect,
discussing and, if necessary, impiementing reasonable alternatives.

Disproportionate effects are those effects which are appreciably more severe for one group or
predominantly borne by a single group. The village will use U.S. Census data to identify low
income and minority populations.

Where a project impacts a small number or area of low income or minority populations, the village
will document that:

e Other reasonable alternatives were evaluated and were eliminated for reasons such as
the alternatives impacted a far greater number of people or did greater harm to the
environment; etc.

e The project’s impact is unavoidable;

¢ The benefits of the project far out-weigh the overall impacts; and

s Mitigation measures are being taken to reduce the harm to low income or minority
populations.

If it is concluded that no minority and/or low-income population groups are present in the project
area, the village will document how the conclusion was reached. If it is determined that one or
more of these population groups are present in the area, the village will administer a potential
disproportionate effects test.

23



The following steps will be taken to assess the impact of projects on minorities and/or low-income
population groups:

STEP ONE: Determine if a minority or low-income population is present within the project area.
If the conclusion is that no minority and/or low-income population is present within the project
area, document how the conclusion was reached. If the conclusion is that there are minority
population groups and/or low-income population groups present, proceed to Step Two.

STEP TWO: Determine whether project impacts associated with the identified low income and
minority populations are disproportionately high and adverse. In doing so, refer to the list of
potential impacts and questions contained in Appendix E. If it is deterrined that there are
disproportionately high and adverse impacts to minority and low-income populations, proceed to
Step Three.

STEP THREE: Propose measures that will avoid, minimize and/or mitigate disproportionatety
high and disproportionate adverse impacts and provide offsetting benefits and opportunities to
enhance communities, neighborhoods and individuals affected by proposed project.

STEP FOUR: If afier mitigation, enhancements and offsetting benefits to the affected
populations, there remains a high and disproportionate adverse impact to minority or low-income
populations, then the following questions must be considered:

Question_1: Are there further mitigation measures that could be employed to avoid or
reduce the adverse effect to the minority or low income population?

Question 2: Are there other additional alternatives to the proposed action that would avoid
or reduce the impacts to the low income or minority populations?

Question 3: Considering the overall public interest, is there a substantial need for the
project?

Question 4: Will the alternatives that would satisfy the need for the project and have less
impact on protected populations (a) have other social economic or environmental impacts
that are more severe than those of the proposed action (b) have increased costs of
extraordinary magnitude?

STEP FIVE: Include all findings, determinations or demonstrations in the environmental
document prepared for the project.

24



FILING A TITLE VI COMPLAINT
L. Introduction

The Title VI complaint procedures are intended to provide aggrieved persons an avenue to raise
complaints of discrimination regarding the village programs, activities, and services, as required
by statute.

IL. Purpose

The purpose of the discrimination complaint procedures is to describe the process used by the
village for processing complaints of discrimination under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
and related statutes.

III. Roles and Responsibilities

The Title VI Coordinator has overall responsibility for the discrimination complaint process and
procedures. The Title VI Coordinator may, at his/her discretion assign a capable person to
investigate the complaint.

The designated investigator will conduct an impartial and objective investigation, collect factual
information and prepare a fact-finding report based upon information obtained from the
investigation.

IV. Filing a Complaint

The complainant shall make himself/herself reasonably available to the designated investigator, to
ensure completion of the investigation within the timeframes set forth.

Applicability: The complaint procedures apply to the beneficiaries of village programs, activities,
and services, including but not limited to: the public, contractors, sub-contractors, consultants,
and other sub-recipients of federal and state funds.

Eligibility: Any person who believes that he/she has been excluded from participation in, denied
benefits or services of any program or activity administered by the village or its sub-recipients,
consultants, and contractors on the basis of race, color, national origin (including Limited English
Proficiency), sex, age or disability may bring forth a complaint of discrimination under Title VL.

Time Limitation on Filing Complaints: Title VI complaints may be filed with the Title VI
Coordinator’s office. In all situations, the employees of the village must contact the Title VI
Coordinator immediately upon receipt of Title VI related complaints.

Complaints must be filed within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. If the complainant could
not reasonably be expected to know that the act was discriminatory within the 180 day period,
he/she will have 60 additional days after becoming aware of the illegal discrimination to file the
complaint.

25



Complaints must be in writing, and must be signed by the complainant and/or the complainant’s
representative. The complaint must set forth as fully as possible the facts and circumstances
surrounding the claimed discrimination. In cases where the complainant is unable or incapable of
providing a written statement, the complainant will be assisted in converting the verbal complaint
into a written complaint. All complaints, however, must be signed by the complainant and/or by
the complainant’s representative.

Items that should not be considered a formal complaint: (unless the items contain a signed cover
letter specifically alleging a violation of Title VI) include but are not limited to:

An anonymous complaint that is too vague to obtain required information
Inquiries seeking advice or information

Courtesy copies of court pleadings

Newspaper articles

Courtesy copies of internal grievances

G

V. Investigation

Investipation Plan: The investigator shall prepare a written plan, which includes, but is not limited
to the following:

- Names of the complainant(s) and respondent(s)

- Basis for complaint

- Issues, events or circumstances that caused the person to believe that he/she has been
discriminated against

- Information needed to address the issue

- Criteria, sources necessary to obtain the information

- Identification of key people

- Estimated investigation time line

- Remedy sought by the complainant(s)

Conducting the Investigation:

- The investigation will address only those issues relevant to the allegations in the complaint.

- Confidentiality will be maintained as much as possible.

- Interviews will be conducted to obtain facts and evidence regarding the allegations in the
complaint. The investigator will ask questions to elicit information about aspects of the case.

- A chronological contact sheet is maintained in the case file throughout the investigation.

- If a Title VI complaint is received on a MDOT related contract against the Village of
Pentwater, MDOT will be responsible for conducting the investigation of the complaint. Upon
receipt of a Title VI complaint filed against the Village of Pentwater, the complaint and any
pertinent information should immediately be forwarded to the MDOT, Civil Rights Program
Unit.

26



Investigation Reporting Process:

- Complaints made against a Village of Pentwater sub-recipient should be investigated by the
village following the internal complaint process.

- Within 60 days of receiving the complaint, the investigator prepares an investigative report
and submits the report and supporting documentation to the office of Rande S. Listerman for
review.

- The Title VI Coordinator reviews the file and investigative report. Subsequent to the review,
the Title VI Coordinator makes a determination of “probable cause” or “no probable cause”
and prepares the decision letter.

Retaliation:

The laws enforced by this Village prohibit retaliation or intimidation against anyone because that
individual has either taken action or participated in action to secure rights protected by these laws.
If you experience retaliation or intimidation separate from the discrimination alleged in this
complaint please contact:

Rande S. Listerman

Village of Pentwater

327 S. Hancock St.

P.O. Box 622

Pentwater, MI 49449

Phone: 231-869-8301

Fax: 231-869-5120

Email: rlisterman@pentwatervillage.org

Reporting Requirements to an External Agency

A copy of the complaint, together with a copy of the investigation report and final decision letter
will be forwarded to the MDOT, Civil Rights Program Unit within 60 days of the date the
complaint was received.

Records

All records and investigative working files are maintained in a confidential area. Records are kept
for three years.

27



APPENDIX A - [TO BE INSERTED IN ALL FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS]

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees, as follows:

1.

Compliance with Regulations: The contractor shall comply with Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation,
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time
(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and
made a part of this contract.

Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the
selection, retention, and treatment of subcontractors, including procurements of materials
in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulation, including employment
practices when the contractor covers a program set for in Appendix B of the Regulations.

Solicitation for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for

work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases
of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor
of the contractor’s obligations under the contract and the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

Information_and Reports: The contractor shall provide all information and reports
required by the Regulations, or directives issues pursuant thereto, and shall permit access
to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be
determined by the State Highway Department or the Federal Highway Administration to
be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. Where any
information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or
refuses to furnish this information, the contractor shall so certify to the State Highway
Department or the Federal Highway Administration, as appropriate, and shall set forth what
efforts it has made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event the contractor’s noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the State Highway Department shall impose
such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to be
appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies
and/or

28



b. Cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include provisions of paragraphs (1)
through (6) in every subcontract, including procurement of material and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The
contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the State
Highway Department or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: provided, however,
that, in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a
subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the State
Highway Department to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and,
in addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to
protect the interests of the United States.

29



APPENDIX B - TRANSFER OF PROPERTY

The following clauses shall be included in any and all deeds effecting or recording the transfer of
real property, structures or improvements thereon, or interest therein from the United States.

(GRANTING CLAUSE)

NOW THEREFORE, the Department of Transportation, as authorized by law, and upon the
condition that the State of Michigan, will accept title to the lands and maintain the project
constructed thereon, in accordance with Title 23, United States Code, the Regulations for the
Administration of the Department of Transportation and, also in accordance with and in
compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in
Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafier referred to as the
Regulations) pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4) does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey
unto the State of Michigan all the right, title and interest of the Department of Transportation in
and to said lands described Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(HABENDUM CLAUSE)*

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the State of Michigan, and its
successors forever, subject, however, the covenant, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein
contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or
structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and shall be binding on the State of
Michigan, its successors and assigns.

The State of Michigan, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, does
hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns,
that (1) no person shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard
to any facility located wholly or in part, on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed (,) (and)*(2)
that the State of Michigan shall use the lands and interests in lands so conveyed, in compliance
with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department
of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-
assisted programs of the Department of Transportation — Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended (,) and (3) that in the event of breach
of any of the above-mentioned nondiscrimination conditions, the Department shall have a right to
re-enter said lands and facilities on said land, and the above described land and facilities shall

30



thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the Department of Transportation
and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this deed.

*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is
necessary in order to effectuate the purpose of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

31



APPENDIX C - PERMITS, LEASES AND LICENSES

The following clauses shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar
instruments entered into by the Michigan Department of Transportation, pursuant to the provisions
of Assurance 7(a).

The grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc., (as appropriate) for himself, his heirs, personal
representative, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby
covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases, add, “as a covenant running with the land™)
that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the said property
described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a Department of
Transportation program or activity is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of
similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) shall remain and operate
such facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to Title
49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the
Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation — Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations
may be amended.

(Include in licenses, leases, permits, etc.)*

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, the Michigan
Department of Transportation shall have the right to terminate the license, lease, permit, etc., and
to re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said license,
lease, permit, etc., had never been made or issued.

(Include in deeds)*

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, the Michigan
Department of Transportation shall have the right to re-enter lands and facilities hereon, and the
above described lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and vest in and become the absoclute
property of the State of Michigan Department of Transportation and its assigns.

*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is

necessary in order to effectuate the purpose of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the
Civil Rights Act of 1987.

32



APPENDIX D - TITLE VI COMPLAINT FORM

THE VILLAGE OF PENTWATER
TITLE VI COMPLAINT FORM

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 states that “No person in the United States shall on the grounds of
race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefit of, or otherwise be
subjected to discrimination in any program, service, or activity receiving federal assistance.”

This form may be used to file a complaint with the Village of Pentwater based on violations of Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964. You are not required to use this form; a letter that provides the same
information may be submitted to file your complaint. Complaints should be filed within 130 days of the
alleged discrimination. If you could not reasonably be expected to know the act was discriminatory
within 180 day period, you have 60 days after you became aware to file your complaint.

If you need assistance completing this form, please contact Rande S. Listerman by phone at 231-869-8301
or via e-mail at rlisterman@pentwaterviilage.org.

Name: Date:

Street Address:

City: State: Zip:

Telephone: (home) {work)

Individual(s) discriminated against, if different than above (use additional pages, if needed).

Name: Date:

Street Address:

City: State: Zip:
Telephone: (home) (work)

Please explain your relationship with the individual(s) indicated above:

Name of agency and department or program that discriminated:

Agency or department name:

Name of individual (if known):

Address:

City: State: Zip:

33



Date(s) of alleged discrimination:
Date discrimination began Last or most recent date

ALLEGED DISCRIMINATION:

If your complaint is in regard to discrimination in the delivery of services or discrimination that
involved the treatment of you by others by the agency or department indicated above, please
indicate below the basis on which you believe these discriminatory actions were taken.

Race Disability Sex
Color Religion Income
Age National Origin Retaliation

Explain: Please explain as clearly as possible what happened. Provide the name(s) of witness(es)
and others involved in the alleged discrimination. (Attach additional sheets, if necessary, and
provide a copy of written material pertaining to your case).

Signature: Date:

Please return completed form to: Rande S. Listerman, 327 S. Hancock St., P.O. Box 622,
Pentwater, MI  49449; Phone: 231-869-8301; Fax: 231-869-5120; Email:
rlisteman(@pentwatervillage.org

Note: The Village of Pentwater prohibits retaliation or intimidation against anyone because that individual has either
taken action or participated in action to secure rights protected by policies of the village. Please inform the person
listed above if you feel you were intimidated or experience perceived retaliation in relation to filing this complaint.

34



APPENDIX E - DETERMINE/DISTINGUISH SIGNIFICANT/NON-SIGNIFICANT
EFFECTS

“Significant” requires considerations of both context and intensity:

(a) Context. This means that the significance of an action must be analyzed in several contexts
such as society as a whole (human, nation), the affected region, the affected interests, and
the locality. Significance varies with the setting of the proposed action. For instance, in
the case of a site-specific action, significance would usually depend upon the effects in the
local area rather than in the world as a whole. Both short-and long-term effects are relevant.

(b) Intensity. This refers to the severity of impact. Responsible officials must bear in mind
that more than one agency may make decisions about partial aspects of a major action. The
following should be considered in evaluating intensity:

(1) Impacts that may be both beneficial and adverse. A significant effect may exist
even if, on balance, the effect would be beneficial.

“Non-significant effect” means no substantial change to an environmental component and this has
no material bearing on the decision-making process.

Scientific, technical, institutional, the public’s value, and the local economic conditions influence
the meaning of significant effect.

If an alternative would provide a beneficial effect, then the alternative would cause no significant
adverse effect. If an alternative would provide an adverse effect, the effect might be significant or

the effect might be non-significant.

Determinations of “significant” and “non-significant” effects will be made by the Clerk/Treasurer.

35



APPENDIX F - PROGRAM COMPLIANCE/PROGRAM REVIEW GOALS FOR
CURRENT PLAN YEAR

1. The Village of Pentwater’s Title VI Plan will be communicated to each Village Department
Head who will review the plan with departmental employees. All Village of Pentwater
employees will be trained or made aware of the Title VI and LEP policies and complaint
procedures.

2, The Village of Pentwater’s Title VI Plan will be published on the main page of the village’s
website pentwatervillage.org, within 90 days of approval.

3. Appendix A will be included in all village contracts as outlined in the Title VI Plan.

4. The language in Number 2 of the Village of Pentwater’s Title VI Assurances will be
included in all solicitations for bids for work or material subject to the Regulations and in
all proposals for negotiated agreements.

5. The procedure(s) for responding to individuals with Limited English Proficiency will be
implemented.

6. A review of village facilities will be conducted in reference to compliance with the
American Disabilities Act.

7. The following data will be collected and reviewed by the Title VI Coordinator and
included, where appropriate, in the annual report submitted to MDOT.

a. Boards and Commissions: The number of vacancies; how vacancies are advertised
and filled; the number of applicants; the representation of minorities will be evaluated.

b. Public Meetings: The number of open meetings; how meeting dates and times are
communicated to the general public and to individuals directly affected by the meeting.

¢. Construction Projects: The number of construction projects and minority contractors
bidding and the number selected; verification that Title VI language was included in
bids and contracts for each project.

d. LEP Needs: The number of requests for language assistance that were requested or
required; the outcome of these requests.

¢. Complaints: The number of Title VI complaints received; nature of the complaints;
resolution of the complaints.

f. Timeliness of Services: The number of requests for services; amount of time from
request to when service was delivered; number of requests denied.

g. Right of Way/Eminent Domain: The number of such actions and diversity of
individual(s) affected.

h. Program Participants: Racial data of program participants where possible.

i The executive order verbatim can be found online at http//www,usdoj govictt/cor/Pubs/eolep him.

i Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons. Federal Register: December 14, 2005
(Volume 70, Number 239)

il The DOT has also posted an abbreviated version of this guidance on their website at hitps://www _civilrights.dot.gov/civil-rights-awareness-
enforcement/language-assistance/dots-lep-guidance

¥ hitp:/fwww.doter,ost.dot. gov/asp/lep/asp

¥ Department of Justice Final LEP Guidelines, Federal Register June 18, 2002-Vol. 67-Number 117.

36



